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Introduction
Welcome to the Report of Operations 2018-19.
Council is committed to transparent reporting and accountability to the community. The Report of
Operations 2018-19 is the primary means of advising the Indigo Shire Council community about
Council’s operations and performance during the financial year.
Snapshot of Indigo Shire
Council

Beechworth and the national parks.

businesses based in the Shire (excluding
agribusinesses). A major operation
providing employment is Uncle Toby’s,
manufacturer of cereals and health food
products, in Wahgunyah.

Indigo Shire is located in Victoria’s
picturesque North East and borders the
Murray River and the Victorian Alps. Indigo
is renowned for its natural beauty and
historic towns. Thousands of tourists visit
the area each year to sample our food and
wine and visit our many well-known
festivals and events.

Tourism has an important place in the
economic, social and cultural life of our
Shire, which has Australia’s most significant
collection of historic towns. Our natural
environment is also part of our tourism
offer - the unspoilt corners of the shire like
Wahgunyah on the Murray River and Upper
Sandy Creek in the Kiewa Valley, the giant
granite outcrops around Chiltern and

Industry in Indigo is mainly rural in nature,
including agriculture, viticulture and
horticulture. There are over 1696 separate

Our people are actively involved in their
communities. Over 40 residents volunteer
with Council services such as our Visitor
Information Centres, the Burke Museum
and Historic Precinct, and our Learner
Driver Mentor Program. and there is strong
and passionate representation on
Committees of Management, Advisory
Committees and Special Council
Committees.

WAHGUNYAH
RUTHERGLEN
BARNAWARTHA
CHILTERN

KIEWA-TANGAMBALANGA

WAHGUNYAH
RUTHERGLEN

YACKANDANDAH
BARNAWARTHA

BEECHWORTH
CHILTERN

STANLEY
KIEWA-TANGAMBALANGA
YACKANDANDAH
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Overview
Fast Facts 2018/19

Population

16,220

Size of Indigo Shire

2,106 sq km

152

infants enrolled in
Maternal and Child
Health service

918,000
visitors

24,647

Customer service
calls

100,425

Physical items loaned
from Indigo Shire
Libraries

Home to

1696

businesses
Maintained
5 swimming pools
and
13 major parks and
gardens

40,313

Swimming pool
visits
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Vision
Indigo: Heritage Shire – Bold Future

Purpose
We will provide leadership, good governance and engage
with the community to grow the social, economic and
environmental viability and sustainability of Indigo Shire.

Values
•
•
•
•
•
•
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Community involvement
Leadership
Honesty and integrity
Respect
Professionalism and teamwork
Accountability
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The Year in Review
Mayor’s Message
On behalf of my fellow Councillors, I am pleased to present
the Annual Report for 2018/19.
I returned to the role of Mayor at the
Statutory Council meeting on 30 October
2018, taking over from Councillor Jenny
O’Connor who held the position since
November 2016.
I am pleased with what Council has
achieved this year. We have delivered a
wide variety of projects and services for the
community, from roads and infrastructure
to maternal and child health services,
libraries, environment and waste services
and much more.
All of our work is underpinned by the
roadmap outlined in our Council Plan
2017-2021 and our mission to grow the
social, economic and environmental
viability and sustainability of Indigo Shire.

Highlights
Among the many highlights of the past
year, work began on the Beechworth to
Yackandandah Rail Trail, which will be a
world class cycling adventure for cyclists
and visitors to North-East Victoria.
In March, the Federal Government
announced a $1 million grant for the
construction of the Beechworth to
Yackandandah Epic Mountain Bike Trail
which, when built, will be the Southern
Hemisphere’s only all-seasons Epic standard
mountain bike trail. Council has made a
budget commitment of $1 million over
three years to match this grant funding.

Throughout the year work also continued
on key town-based projects including the
Rutherglen Economic Revitalisation Project,
as well as the Kiewa-Tangambalanga and
Chiltern Placemaking Projects. We also
started community engagement to inform
the future Yackandandah Place Plan.
Another highlight was the completion of
two new all-weather Netball courts in
Chiltern, a project that was jointly funded
by the State Government, Indigo Shire
Council, Chiltern Recreation Reserve and
Chiltern Football Netball Club.
We also partnered with Saputo, Coulston
Park Committee of Management, Kiewa
Sandy Creek Football and Netball club and
the community to fund two new netball
courts in Kiewa-Tangambalanga.
This year, we finalised a number of plans
and strategies to support our people and
communities including the Ageing Well
Strategy and Youth Strategy. We also
implemented actions from the Active
Indigo Recreation Plan, including the
development of a new grant stream to
increase participation in sport and
recreation.

Advocacy and engagement
I am particularly proud of the work we have
done to advocate on behalf of our
community about local issues and I see this
as one of my most important roles. During
the year we met with Federal and State
Government representatives about issues
including ambulance response times,
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improved recreation and community
facilities, mobile black spot funding, access
to childcare and kindergarten services,
improved policing in Indigo Shire, and the
Rutherglen heavy vehicle alternative route.
Feedback from the community is vital in
guiding Council decision-making. We’ve
conducted extensive community
engagement throughout the year from
community forums and workshops
through to seeking feedback on plans,
strategies and our annual budget planning
process. I thank everyone who has taken
the time to share their thoughts with us.

Thank you
I would like to thank my fellow Councillors
for their commitment to Indigo Shire and
their hard work on behalf of the
community. I would also like to recognise
the work of our Chief Executive Officer,
Trevor Ierino, and Council staff for their hard
work throughout the year.
Finally, thank you to the many volunteers,
businesses and community groups for their
positive contribution to the wellbeing and
prosperity of Indigo Shire.

Cr Bernard Gaffney
Mayor
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Message from the CEO
I am pleased to present Indigo Shire
Council’s 2018/19 Annual Report. This
report reflects on the achievements of the
2018/19 financial year and details how
Indigo Shire Council delivered a range of
projects and services for the community.
Council has performed well financially over
the last 12 months. Council’s financial
position at the end of 2018/19 was an
operating surplus of $2.5 million. Cash on
hand is $7.1 million.
Council invested $6.5 million in capital
works during the year. The project
completion rate for approved projects was
71 per cent.
I am proud of what we have achieved in
the last year.

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

ages in our Shire, including Youth
Strategy, Ageing Well Strategy and an
Early Years Strategy.
Released a new Ageing Well Strategy
and rolled out key projects, including
Indigo Calling and Community
Connectors, to support vulnerable
members of our community.
Launched a new accessible and
mobile-friendly Council website.
Finalised a review of Council
Committees.
Upgraded our library book stock.
Installed a number of water bubblers
across the Shire.
Secured a grant and delivered a new
library van with fit-out and hoist.
Completed Chiltern Senior Citizens
club rooms and kitchen.
Repainted Quercus Hall ceiling.
Upgraded swimming pools at
Chiltern, Beechworth, Rutherglen,
Tangambalanga and Yackandandah.

Key highlights
•

•
•
•

•
•
•

•

•

Continued work on the Rutherglen
Revitalisation Project, including the
completion of works on Rutherglen
Main Street and significant
landscaping work at Lake King.
Work began on the Yackandandah
Place Plan Project.
Opened the new Chiltern Netball
Courts.
Provided $76,000 in funding for
community, event and festival grants
and introduced a new $30,000
funding stream as part of the Active
Indigo Grants.
Launched a new $20,000 Community
Facility Energy Upgrade Grants
Program.
Work started on the Beechworth to
Yackandandah Rail Trail Project.
Received a $1 million grant for the
construction of the Beechworth to
Yackandandah Epic Mountain Bike
Trail.
Developed a suite of sustainability
strategies and policies including the
Plasticwise Policy, Climate Change
Policy and Environment Strategy.
Conducted community engagement
for development of new strategies
and policies to support people of all

I am particularly proud of the work we have
done to listen to and engage with the
community. We held nine community
forums across the Shire and consulted with
a range of community members over the
last financial year. I thank everyone who
has taken the time to share their feedback
about what we are doing well and where
we can improve.
In addition, each year we participate in the
Local Government Community Satisfaction
Survey. The survey seeks community views
on overall performance with
benchmarking against state-wide and
council group results.

Trevor Ierino
CEO
the quality of existing services and
emerging demands, whilst working within
a state and federal environment of rate
capping, grant freezes and cost shifting. To
this end, we will continue to pursue shared
services opportunities with other councils
in our region to improve the sustainability
and efficiency of our service delivery.
I would like to acknowledge and thank the
Mayor and Councillors for their dedication
and commitment over the last year.
It is a great privilege to serve the
community of Indigo Shire and I am proud
to lead a team of dedicated and
community-minded staff members. I would
like to thank all employees at Indigo Shire
Council for the work they have done over
the past year to uphold our purpose to
grow the social, economic and
environmental viability and sustainability of
Indigo Shire.

In the 2019 Community Satisfaction Survey,
Indigo Shire Council received an overall
performance score of 61, which was higher
than the state-wide average and
significantly higher than the average rating
for councils in the small rural group.
Our key challenge in the long term remains
our financial sustainability, including
renewing our existing assets, maintaining
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Highlights of the Year
The Council Plan 2017-2021 guides the
work of Council in providing services and
projects for the community. The plan is set
out in five strategic focus areas and what
follows is a summary of achievements
under those five key areas.

Strategic Theme 1
Indigo’s People and Communities
The business of Council is conducted in a financially sustainable, open
and efficient manner. We will focus on community members being
physically and mentally healthy and active, connected to services and
to each other; engaging our young people; and recognising and
engaging with indigenous groups.
2018/19 achievements:
• Reviewed and updated the Indigo Shire Youth Strategy.
• Facilitated more opportunities for the youth voice to be heard with
the implementation of the new Youth Ambassador Program.
• Implemented actions from the Active Indigo Recreation Plan
including the development of a new grant stream to increase
participation in sport and recreation.
• Supported a number of regional initiatives to reduce family violence.

Strategic Theme 2
Indigo’s Places, Townships & Infrastructure
We will encourage sustainable and well planned townships and land
management, an attractive and well maintained built environment,
streetscapes, open spaces and trees, expand our road and path
networks, maintain our cultural and heritage assets and ensure facilities
and infrastructure meet the needs of the community.
2018/19 achievements:
• Completed works to upgrade Rutherglen Main Street and Lake King.
• Commenced construction of Rail Trail from Beechworth to Osbornes
Flat.
• Expanded our sealed road network in urban and rural areas.
• Completed construction of two new all-weather netball courts in
Chiltern.
• Completed the toilet upgrade at Huon Reserve.
• Increased drinking water refill stations throughout the Shire.
• Successful funding application to construct Beechworth to
Yackandandah Epic Mountain Bike Trail.
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Strategic Theme 3

Strategic Theme 5

Indigo’s Economy

Civic Leadership and Governance

We will ensure Indigo Shire has a growing local economy and a
thriving tourism industry and that businesses are supported.

We will ensure Indigo Shire Council is financially sustainable, that
Council business is open and transparent, that Council services are
responsive and efficient, develop effective partnerships and
engage with the community to deliver outcomes.

2018/19 achievements:
• Commenced implemenation the Economic Development
Strategy.
• Commenced implementation of the Tourism Strategy.
• Supported ways to boost our economy through artistic and
creative endeavours.
• Supported the Totally Renewable Yack micro-grid and
community energy retail proposal.

2018/19 achievements:
• Significant improvement in Council’s annual budget process
including a 10-year financial plan, strategic resource plan and
service-level budget, in addition to the usual budget report.
Maintained financial low/medium risk status as assessed by the
Victorian Auditor General’s Office.
• Successfully renegotiated key employee terms in our Enterprise
Agreement 2018-2020.

Strategic Theme 4
Indigo’s Environment & Sustainability
We will support the reduction of carbon emissions and adaptation
to climate change, reduce community consumption of
nonrenewable resources and attract investment for renewable
energy industries.
2018/19 achievements:
• Developed Draft Environment Strategy.
• Developed Draft Resource Recovery & Waste Management
Strategy.
• Implemented community facility energy upgrade grants
program.
• Improved energy efficiency in Council buildings and operations.
• Implemented Plastic Wise Indigo.
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Financial Summary
A summary of our performance is outlined below. Detailed information
relating to Council’s financial performance is included within the Financial
Statement and Performance Statement sections of this report.

Operating Position

Liquidity

Council recorded a surplus of $2.5 million in 2018/19. This surplus is
lower than the the prior year’s surplus of $3.2 million. As shown in
the Comprehensive Income Statement in the Financial Report, this
reduction in the surplus was the result of income being slightly
lower than the prior year across various income streams in addition
to an increase in expenditure of $0.56 million. The majority of this
increase in expenditure relates to Council allocating spending on
major community projects.

Cash has decreased by $1.3 million from the prior year because an
increase in materials and services expenditure as discussed above
in addition to an increase in capital expenditure. The working
capital ratio that assesses Council’s ability to meet current
commitments is calculated by measuring Council’s current assets as
a percentage of current liabilities. Council’s result of 214% is an
indicator of satisfactory financial position and within the expected
target band of 100 - 400%.

Council has recorded a comprehensive result of $6.3million surplus
for the financial year after adjustments for the increase in asset
revaluation.
The adjusted underlying deficit of Council after removing nonrecurrent capital grants, cash capital contributions and nonmonetary capital contributions, has seen a reduction of 3.86% from
the prior year’s surplus. This reduction is due to an increase in
non-recurrent capital grants and the increase in expenditure as
discussed above.
Sustaining an adjusted underlying surplus enables Council to
continue to provide core services and meet its objectives. Any
decline means a reliance on capital grants, Council’s cash reserves
or increased debt to maintain services.

Obligations
Council aims to ensure it is able to maintain its infrastructure assets
at the expected levels, while at the same time continuing to deliver
the services needed by the community. Council invested $4.3
million in renewal works during the 2018/19 year. Council’s assets
renewal ratio, which is measured by comparing asset renewal
expenditure to depreciation, was 75.74%, which was within the
expected target band of 40 - 130%. At the end of 2018/19 year
Council’s debt ratio, which is measured by comparing interest
bearing loans and borrowings to rate revenue was 14.98%. This
level of borrowings is considered to be low risk by the Victorian
Auditor General.

Stability and Efficiency
Council raises a wide range of revenues including rates, user fees,
fines, grants and contributions. Council’s rates concentration, which
compares rate revenue to adjusted underlying revenue was 56.58%
for the 2018/19 year, which is in the expected target band of
30-80%. Council’s average residential rate per residential assessment
was $1,902.80 (including the municipal, garbage and organics
charges).
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
Actual
Dimension/indicator/measure

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

$3,175.48

$3,624.30

$3,222.91

$3,352.43

$3,319.86

$1,668.14

$1,779.11

$1,767.46

$1,803.91

$1,902.80

150.00%

128.94%

246.47%

200.15%

214.81%

57.63%

61.88%

134.66%

92.31%

71.18%

48.14%

53.51%

48.56%

51.90%

56.58%

0.51%

0.54%

0.53%

0.54%

0.47%

Material Variations

Efficiency
Expenditure level
Expenses per property assessment
[Total expenses / Number of property
assessments]

Revenue level
Average residential rate per
residential property assessment
[Residential rate revenue / Number of
residential property assessments]

Liquidity
Working capital
Current assets compared to current
liabilities
[Current assets / Current liabilities] x100

Unrestricted cash
Unrestricted cash compared to
current liabilities
[Unrestricted cash / Current liabilities] x100

Stability
Rates concentration
Rates compared to adjusted
underlying revenue
[Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying
revenue] x100

Rates effort
Rates compared to property values
[Rate revenue / Capital improved value of
rateable properties in the municipality] x100
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
Actual
Dimension/indicator/measure

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

Material Variations

8.13%

-10.18%

11.08%

3.04%

-3.68%

Underlying result fluctuates this year
and over the future years because
there are significant non recurrent
grant funding expected to be received
for major capital works project in the
coming years.

57.72%

74.80%

59.68%

61.32%

75.74%

31.84%

27.63%

23.22%

19.08%

14.98%

4.39%

5.34%

4.92%

4.37%

4.21%

26.65%

38.01%

36.26%

31.59%

29.47%

Operating position
Adjusted underlying result
Adjusted underlying surplus (or
deficit)
[Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit)/
Adjusted underlying
revenue] x100

Obligations
Asset renewal
Asset renewal compared to
depreciation
[Asset renewal expenses / Asset
depreciation] x100

Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings compared to
rates
[Interest bearing loans and borrowings /
Rate revenue] x100

Loans and borrowings
repayments compared to rates
[Interest and principal repayments on
interest bearing loans and borrowings /
Rate revenue] x100

Indebtedness
Non-current liabilities compared to
own source revenue
[Non-current liabilities / Own source
revenue] x100
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Description of Operations
Indigo Shire Council is responsible for services ranging from advocacy, roads, family and
children’s services, recreation facilities, open space, waste management, and community
development, to matters concerning economic development, planning for appropriate
development and ensuring accountability for Council’s budget.
This broad range of community services and infrastructure for
residents supports the wellbeing and prosperity of our community.

Roads, bridges, carparks and footpaths

Council’s vision, strategic objectives and strategies to further
improve services and facilities are described in our Council Plan
June 2017-2021 and the associated Budget 2018/19 and reported
on in this document.

•
•
•

The delivery of services, facilities, support and advocacy to achieve
the Council Plan Strategic Objectives is measured by a set of service
performance indicators and measures. Refer to the section in Our
Performance for more information about Council services.

•

•
•
•
•

Major capital works
The 2018/19 capital works year delivered the largest capital works
programs in recent years for Indigo Shire with capital expenditure
totaling over $6.5 million. The major capital works included the
following:

Buildings
•
•
•

Re-roofing the former Beechworth Railway Station building.
Rutherglen Lions Clubrooms external verandah renewal and
roof painting.
Chiltern Senior Citizens Club Rooms kitchen upgrade.

•

Commencement of works on the Beechworth to Yackandandah
Rail Trail project.
Road Safety improvement works on Osbornes Flat Road.
Widening of Chiltern Yackandandah Road.
Improvements to Osbornes Flat Service Road adjacent to
Primary School.
Commenced replacement of Sheridans Road Bridge.
Bridge strengthening and rehabilitation works on Racecourse
Road (Osbornes Flat).
Completion of the annual resealing, pavement rehabilitation
and gravel re-sheeting programs.
Footpath construction in Reid and Murray Streets (Rutherglen),
Short Street (Wahgunyah) and Loch Street (Beechworth).
Sealed a number of urban streets in Beechworth and
Yackandandah.

Parks and open spaces
•
•
•
•
•

Remodeling of Lake King, Rutherglen.
Construction of two all-weather netball courts in Chiltern.
Refurbishment of the water fountain in Martin Park Chiltern.
Commencement of the Yackandandah skate park works.
Replacement of the toilet at Huon Reserve.
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Our Council
Councillors
The Council was elected to provide leadership and good governance of Indigo Shire and the local
community. The seven elected Councillors are the representatives of all residents and ratepayers
across the Shire.
They have responsibility for setting the strategic direction for the Shire, policy development,
identifying service standards and monitoring performance across the organisation.

Cr Bernard Gaffney – Mayor, October 2018 for one year
Elected 2008
Mayor 2009-2010, 2013-2015
E: bernard.gaffney@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
M: 0419 181 234
Committee representation
•
Alliance of Shires & Councils of the Upper
Murray (ACSUM)
•
Audit Committee
•
Baarmutha Park Committee of
Management (sub)
•
Hume Region Local Government Network
(HRLGN)
•
ISC Finance Committee (sub)
•
Lake Hume Recreational Coordinating
Committee
•
Municipal Association of Victoria (ISC
Representative) (MAV)
•
Municipal Fire Management Planning
Committee (sub)
•
Ovens & Murray Regional Assembly
•
Rural Councils Victoria (sub)
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•
•

Rutherglen Wine Centre Board Special
Committee
Wahgunyah Rail Land Development
Committee

Meeting attendance
Ordinary meetings: 11
Special Council meetings: 3
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Cr Barbara Murdoch – Deputy Mayor, October 2018 for one year
Elected 2005 | Mayor 2012-13
E: barb.murdoch@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
M: 0407 821 221
Committee representation
•
Alliance of Shires & Councils of the Upper
Murray (ACSUM) (sub)
•
Australian Local Government Women’s
Association Victorian Branch
•
Beechworth Trees Consultative Committee
- As resolved by Council on 25 September
2018, this committee transitioned to a
reference group on 30 October 2018.
•
Burke Museum & Historic Precinct Advisory
Committee (sub) - As resolved by Council
on 25 September 2018, this committee is
being merged with the Heritage Advisory
Committee, to form a new advisory
committee that will be a key source of
history, heritage and collection advice to
Council.
•
Chiltern Goods Shed Committee of
Management
•
Hume Region Local Government Network
(HRLGN) (sub)
•
Hume to Yarrawonga Waterway
Management Advisory Group
•
Indigo Shire Council Community Access
Committee (sub)
•
Indigo Shire Council Community Grants
Awards Advisory Committee (Chair)

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

ISC Heritage Advisory Committee - As
resolved by Council on 25 September
2018, this committee is being merged
with the Burke Museum & Historic
Precinct Advisory Committee, to form a
new advisory committee that will be a key
source of history, heritage and collection
advice to Council.
Indigo Shire Council Finance Committee
MAV Planning Committee
MAV Professional Development
Municipal Association of Victoria (ISC
Representative) (MAV) (sub)
North East Waste Resource Recovery Group
Forum (NEWRRG) (sub)
Ovens & Murray Regional Assembly (sub)
Rutherglen Wine Centre Board Special
Committee
Wahgunyah Rail Land Development
Committee (sub)

Meeting attendance
Ordinary meetings: 10
Special Council meetings: 2

Cr Sophie Price
Date elected: 2016
E: sophie.price@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
M: 0400 651 848
Committee representation
•
Audit Committee
•
Australian Local Government Women’s
Association Victorian Branch
•
Baarmutha Park Committee of Management
(chair)
•
Chiltern Goods Shed Committee of
Management
•
Goulburn Broken Greenhouse Alliance (sub)
•
Indigo Shire Council Community Access
Committee

•
•

Indigo Shire Council Environment Advisory
Committee
Wahgunyah Rail Land Development
Committee

Meeting attendance
Ordinary meetings: 11
Special Council meetings: 3
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Cr Larry Goldsworthy
Elected: 2008-12 / 2016 | Mayor 2011-12
E: larry.goldsworthy@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
M: 0499 450 041
Committee representation
•
Indigo Shire Council Community Grants
Awards Advisory Committee (sub)
•
Indigo Shire Council Economic Development
& Tourism Advisory Committee
•
Indigo Shire Council Finance Advisory
Committee (chair)
•
Municipal Emergency Management Planning
Committee (MEMPC)

Meeting attendance
Ordinary meetings :11
Special Council meetings: 2

Cr James Trenery
Elected 2012 | Mayor 2015/16
E: james.trenery@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
M: 0429 417 420
Committee representation
•
Indigo Shire Council Community Access
Advisory Committee
•
Indigo Shire Council Finance Committee

Meeting attendance
Ordinary meetings: 11
Special Council meetings: 3

Cr Diane Shepheard
Elected 2016
E: diane.shepheard@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
M: 0428 115 213
Committee representation
•
Australian Local Government Women’s
Association Victorian Branch
•
Burke Museum & Historic Precinct Advisory
Committee - As resolved by Council on 25
September 2018, this committee is
being merged with the Heritage
Advisory Committee, to form a new
advisory committee that will be a key
source of history, heritage and
collection advice to Council.
•
Goulburn Broken Greenhouse Alliance
•
Indigo Shire Council Economic Development
& Tourism Advisory Committee
•
Indigo Shire CouncilEnvironment Advisory
Committee
•

16

•

•
•
•

Indigo Shire Council Heritage Advisory
Committee - As resolved by Council on 25
September 2018, this committee is
being merged with the Burke Museum &
Historic Precinct Advisory Committee,
to form a new advisory committee that
will be a key source of history, heritage
and collection advice to Council.
Municipal Emergency Management
Planning Committee (MEMPC) (sub)
Municipal Fire Management Planning
Committee
Murray Arts Advisory Council

Meeting attendance
Ordinary meetings: 10
Special Council meeting: 3
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Cr Jenny O’Connor
Elected 2012 | Mayor 2016-18
E: jenny.oconnor@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
M: 0417 126 409
Committee representation
•
Atauro Island Friendship Committee
•
North East Waste Resource Recovery Group
Forum (NEWRRG)
•
Rural Councils Victoria (RCV)

Meeting attendance
Ordinary meetings: 8
Special Council meetings: 1
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Our People
Organisational Structure
Council is the governing body that appoints a Chief Executive
Officer (CEO). The CEO has responsibility for the day to day
management of operations in accordance with the strategic
directions of the Council Plan. Three Directors, two Senior Managers
and the CEO form the Executive Management Team (EMT) and lead

the organisation. Details of the CEO and senior officers reporting
directly to the CEO are set out below.

Trevor Ierino

Chief Executive Officer

Senior Officers reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer

Mark Florence

Greg Pinkerton

Ian Ellett

Dalene Voigt

Kate Biglin

Areas of responsibility:
• Community Development
• Recreation
• Young People
• Ageing Well
• Early Years
• Community facility
development
• Libraries
• Tourism
• Economic Development
• Customer Service
• Records Management

Areas of responsibility:
• Planning
• Building &
Environmental Health
• Finance & Risk
• Information Technology
• Rates
• Enforcement

Areas of responsibility:
• Asset management
• Capital works planning
and delivery
• Infrastructure
maintenance
• Buildings and property
• Parks and trees
• Environmental
management
• Waste and recycling
• Quarry management
• Buller Gas

Areas of responsibility:
• Human Resources
• Organisational
Development
• Occupational Health
and Safety
• Industrial Relations
• Workforce Planning
• Learning and
Development
• Business Improvement
and Culture Building
• Governance

Areas of responsibility:
• Media liaison
• Community
consultation
• Community
engagement
• Project support
• Publications

Director Community &
Economic Development
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Director Planning &
Corporate Services

Director Infrastructure
Services

Manager Organisational
Development

Manager Engagement &
Communications
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Organisational Structure as of June 2019
A chart setting out the organisational structure of council is shown below:

Council

EA, CEO

Chief Executive
Officer (E)
Human Resources

EA - Mayor & Councillors

OH&S
Manager Organisational
Development (E)

Manager Engagement &
Communications (E)

Engagement &
Communications

Governance

Director Planning &
Corporate Services (E)

Director Community &
Economic Development (E)

Director Infrastructure
Services (E)

Manage Finance & Risk
(C)

Manager Community
Development (C)

Manager Municipal
Operations (C)

Manager I.T. (C)

Manager Tourism (C)

Manager Assets &
Property (C)

Manager Planning&
Statutory Services (C)

Economic Development
& Investment Officer

Manager Capital
Projects (C)
Coordinator
Environment &
Sustainability (C)

(E) = Executive Management Team Member (EMT)
(C) = Corporate Management Team Member (CMT)
EA = Executive Assistant

2018-19 saw some structural changes which are reflected in our revised Organisational
Structure diagram.
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Council Staff
A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff by
organisational structure, employment type and gender is set out below.
Employment Type /
Gender

Executive
Office

Community &
Economic

Planning &
Corporate

Infrastructure

Total FTE

5.0

13.0

6.0

3.0

27

Permanent FT - F
Permanent FT - M

1.0

7.0

12.0

40.0

60

Permanent PT - F

2.63

14.65

4.44

5.12

26.84

Permanent PT - M

0.74

2.74

3.18

4.51

11.17

Legend:

Casual - F

0.0

2.99

0.16

0.0

3.15

FT – Full time
PT – Part time
F – Female
M – Male

Casual - M
Total

0.0

1.15

1.79

0.57

3.51

9.37

41.53

27.57

53.20

131.67

45
40
Number of Staff (FTE)

35

Permanent FT - F

30

Permanent
FT -FT
F -M
Permanent
Permanent
FT - PT
M -F
Permanent
Permanent
PT -PT
F -M
Permanent
Permanent
PT
Casual - F M
Casual - F
Casual - M
Casual - M

25
20
15
10
5
0

Executive Group

Employment
Band 1

Economic & Community

Planning & Corporate

Infrastructure

Male

Female

Total

Employment

0.0

0.52

0.52

35
30

Band 2

1.0

0.0

1.0

Band 3

16.10

10.69

26.79

25

Band 4

14.58

6.86

21.44

20

Band 5

11.0

20.06

31.06

15

Band 6

15.37

9.72

25.09

10

Band 7

3.0

2.68

5.68

Band 8

1.63

0.0

1.63

Band N/A

12.0

6.46

18.46

Total

74.68

56.99

131.67

Male
Female

5
0

Band 1 Band 2 Band 3 Band 4 Band 5 Band 6 Band 7 Band 8 Band n/a

Actual
Dimension/indicator/measure
Workforce turnover
Resignations and terminations compared to average staff
[Number of permanent staff resignations and terminations / Average
number of permanent staff for the financial year] x100

2015/16

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19
.

9.49%

13.04%

34.93%

15.88%

The figure for 2017/18 reflect Council’s decision to exit direct service delivery of Community Care services from 1 July 2018.
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Other Staff Matters
Staff and volunteers are Council’s most valuable asset and the strength
behind Council’s success. We are proud of the commitment and
dedication they show to the community and each other.

Enterprise Agreement
After five months of rigorous but respectful
negotiations with representatives of the
Australian Services Union and Australian
Nursing and Midwifery Federation, union
delegates and independent employee
representatives, our new Enterprise
Agreement was approved by 92% of voting
employees on 31 October 2018. The Fair
Work Commission subsequently approved
it on 3 April 2019. The Enterprise
Agreement sets out employment
conditions for 2018 – 2020.

Organisational Alignment &
Engagement Survey

Equal Employment
Opportunity

We value the opinions and feedback of our
employees. 123 of our staff completed an
organisational alignment and engagement
survey in May. The purpose was to develop
a greater understanding of our current
operating culture and to establish a
benchmark against which to measure our
progress, and to inform and guide
organisational development priorities and
programs for the next two years.

Indigo Shire Council is committed to the
principles of equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination. Council staff,
contractors, and volunteers are entitled to a
working environment that is free of all
forms of discrimination and inappropriate
workplace behaviours.

Health and safety
It strikes the balance between offering
attractive employment conditions to attract
and retain quality staff, with the budgetary
limitations of local government in a rate
capped environment. This is increasingly
challenging as we compete with private
sector and larger public sector organisation
to attract and retain highly skilled people.

Council continued its strong commitment
to Occupational Health & Safety during
2018/19. Our OH&S Committee is strongly
represented by employees from across the
business with attention given to both
preventative and mitigation measures.
Over the last 12 months, in consultation
with staff, we have developed an OHS
Management Plan 2019, OHS Consultation,
Communication and Issue Resolution
Procedure and strengthened our OHS Risk
and Change Management practices.

Council’s commitment to equal
employment opportunity is demonstrated
by:
•

Our Code of Conduct which includes
focus on discrimination, harassment,
workplace bullying, occupational
violence, victimisation, reporting
improper conduct and unacceptable
behaviour.

•

Our recruitment process which fosters
merit based selection.

•

Promotion of and access to Employee
Contact Officers and Employee
Assistance Programs.
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Our Performance
Planning and Accountability Framework
The Local Government Act 1989 requires Council to prepare
the following planning and reporting documents:

•

A Council Plan within six months after
each general election or by 30 June,
whichever is later.

•

A strategic resource plan for a period of
at least four years and include this in the
Council Plan.

•

A budget for each financial year.

•

An annual report in respect of each
financial year.

The following diagram shows the
relationships between the key planning
and reporting documents that make up the
planning and accountability framework for
Indigo Shire Council. It also shows that
there are opportunities for community and
stakeholder input and feedback at each
stage of the planning and reporting cycle.

Time horizon

Planning

Medium term
Council plan
• Strategic objectives
• Strategies
• Strategic indicators

Reporting

Jan - Jun

Stakeholder
and
community
engagement

Feb - Jun

Strategic resource plan
• Financial statements
• Statements of non-financial
resources

Mar - Jun

Budget
• Services and initiatives
• Service outcome indicators
• Major initiatives
• Financial statements

Short term

22

Timing

Annual report
• Report of operations
• Financial statements
• Performance statement

Jul - Sep
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Council Plan
The Council Plan 2017-2021 includes strategic objectives, strategies for achieving these over
the four-year period, and strategic indicators for monitoring achievement of the objectives. The
following are the five strategic focus areas as detailed in the Council Plan..

Strategic Focus Areas
•

Indigo’s People & Communities

•

Indigo’s Places, Townships & Infrastructure

•

Indigo’s Economy

•

Indigo’s Environment & Sustainability

•

Indigo’s Civic Leadership & Governance

Performance
Council’s performance for the 2018/19 year has been reported in a number of ways:
•

Results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in the Council Plan.

•

Progress in relation to the major initiatives identified in the Budget.

•

Services funded in the Budget and the people or sections of the community who are provided those services.

•

Results against the prescribed service performance indicators and measures.
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Strategic Theme 1:
Indigo’s People & Communities
The business of Council is conducted in a financially sustainable, open and efficient manner.
We will focus on community members being physically and mentally healthy and active,
connected to services and to each other; engaging our young people; and recognising and
engaging with indigenous groups.

Strategic indicators
The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation to the strategic
indicators included in the Council Plan.
Strategic Indicator/measure

Result

Libraries
Percentage of the population who are active library
members

18.99%

Maternal and Child Health
Participation in the first maternal and child health
home visit

97.95%

Aquatic Facilities
Utilisation of aquatic facilities per head of population

Comments

2.50

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2018/19 Budget for the year.
Major Initiatives

Progress

Implement actions and projects from the Active Indigo Strategy

Implementation underway including funding attraction for key
initiatives and launch of new grant program.

Implement actions and projects from the Ageing Well Strategy

Implementation underway including recruitment of Ageing Well
Officer and participation in local and regional initiatives.
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Services
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2018/19 budget and the persons or sections of the
community who are provided the service.

Service
Ageing Well

Community Development

Early Years

Environmental Health Services

Library Services

Description

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000

The purpose of this service is for Council to maintain an Ageing Well function
to facilitate service planning and co-ordination, implement actions from the
Ageing Well Strategy and advocate for enhances infrastructure and access for
older people.

(10)
(112)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Strategically assess and facilitate planning and service delivery across the
shire for all aged cohorts.
• Plan and provide opportunities for community activities and to identify and
respond to issues.
• Support the community to become more self-sufficient and sustainable by
giving them the tools and resilience to investigate and address local issues.
• Provide the community and community groups with opportunities to be
involved in art and cultural activities, events and programs.

(575)
(651)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Support groups and agencies to provide early years’ services to the Indigo
Shire community.
• Provide Maternal and Child Health and Immunisation services to the Indigo
Shire community.

(88)
(161)

This service protects the community’s health and wellbeing by coordinating
food safety support programs to:
• Manage and deliver Council’s statutory duties under the provisions of the
Food Act 1984 (food safety), Public Health & Wellbeing Health Act 2008,
Environment Protection Act 1970, Tobacco Act 1987 and other associated
Acts and Regulations through appropriate policy development, planning
and service delivery.
This service provides public library services which:
• Provides the community with four permanent libraries as Beechworth,
Chiltern, Rutherglen and Yackandandah.
• Provides a variety of out-reach programs and services to all other
communities and towns.
• Provides access to other collections available through the Swift Consortium.
• Meets informational, educational and recreational needs of all members of
the community.

102

76

73

(30)
36
(66)

(359)
(401)
42
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Service
Recreation

Young People

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000

Description
The purpose of this service is to:
• Plan for the future recreational needs of the community.
• Support the community in the provision of recreation facilities and services,
identification of funding opportunities, preparation and submission of
funding applications, working with committees of management in the
development of master plans.
• This service provides outdoor swimming pool facilities to five communities
and provides the community with access to aquatic facilities, services and
programs.

The purpose of this service is to provide and extend the range and quality of
services available to young people aged between 12-25 years in the Indigo
Shire by working with service providers, schools and community groups. In
particular:
• FReeZa events;
• iEngage programs
• L2P program

(420)
(359)
61

(62)
(41)
(21)

Service performance indicators
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.
Actual
Service/indicator/measure

Maternal and Child Health
(MCH)

2016

2017

2018

2019

97.69%

99.17%

94.44%

97.95%

84.62%

94.21%.

92.86%

104.11%

$97.38

$78.86

$82.36

$75.58

80.07%

76.07%

87.13%

90.46%

Material Variations

Satisfaction
Participation in first MCH home visit
[Number of first MCH home visits / Number of birth
notifications received] x100

Service Standard
Infant enrolments in the MCH Service
[Number of infants enrolled in the MCH service (from
birth notifications received) / Number of birth
notifications received] x100

Service cost
Cost of the MCH service
[Cost of the MCH service
/ Hours worked by MCH nurses]

Participation
Participation in the MCH service
[Number of children who attend the MCH service at
least once (in the year) / Number of children enrolled in
the MCH service] x100
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The improved outcome is the result
of a deliberate effort over several
years to improve infant enrolments.
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Actual
Service/indicator/measure
Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal
children

2016
72.41%

2017
65.12%

2018
96.15%

2019
91.30%

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

100.00%

93.14%

100.00%

100.00%

$586.66

$666.43

$626.90

$683.78

100.00%

100.00%

90.32%

104.17%

Material Variations
.

[Number of aboriginal children who attend the MCH
service at least once (in the year) / Number of Aboriginal
children enrolled in the MCH service] x100

Food Safety
Timeliness
Time taken to action food complaints
[Number of days between receipt and first response
action for all food complaints / Number of food
complaints

Service standard
Food safety assessments
[Number of registered class 1 food premises and class 2
food premises that receive an annual food safety
assessment in accordance with the Food Act 1984 /
Number of registered class 1 food premises and class 2
food premises that require an annual food safety
assessment in accordance with the Food Act 1984] x100

Service cost
Cost of food safety service
[Direct cost of the food safety service / Number of food
premises registered or notified in accordance with the
Food Act 1984

Health and safety
Critical and major non- compliance outcome
notifications
[Number of critical non- compliance outcome
notifications and major non-compliance notifications
about a food premises followed up / Number of critical
non- compliance outcome notifications and major
non-compliance notifications about food premises] x100

One non-compliance was
discovered late in the previous year
and was not followed-up prior to
the end of year. This lead to a
2017/18 result of 90.32%. This
outstanding non-compliance was
completed early in 2018/19 in
addition to the usual 100%
follow-up of non-compliance
notifications, leading to a result of
104.17% in 2018/19. Over the two
year period all non-compliances
have been appropriately followedup by Council.
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Actual
Service/indicator/measure

2016

2017

2018

2019

3.20

3.14

3.29

3.17

70.80%

73.58%

79.93%

78.52%

$6.29

$5.51

$5.10

$5.13

14.17%

17.11%

17.64%

18.99%

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

$7.50

$7.05

$5.65

$6.25

Material Variations

Libraries
Utilisation
Library collection items
[Number of library collection item loans/Number of
library collection items]

Resource standard
Standard of library collection
[Number of library collection items purchased in the last
5 years/Number of library collection items] x100

Service cost
Cost of library service
[Direct cost of library service/Number of visits]

Participation
Active library members
[Number of active library members/Municipal
population] x100

Aquatic Facilities
Service standard
Health inspections of aquatic facilities
[Number of authorized officer inspections of Council
aquatic facilities/Number of Council aquatic facilities

Health and Safety
Reportable safety incidents at aquatic facilities
[Number of WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety
incidents]

Service Cost
Cost of outdoor aquatic facilities

(4-year average is $6.61)

[Direct cost of outdoor aquatic facilities less income
received/Number of visits to outdoor aquatic facilities]

Utilisation
Utilisation of outdoor aquatic facilities
[Number of visits to aquatic facilities/Municipal
population]
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Strategic Theme 2: Indigo’s Places,
Townships & Infrastructure
We will encourage sustainable and well planned townships and land management, an
attractive and well maintained built environment, streetscapes, open spaces and trees.
We will expand our road and path networks, maintain our cultural and heritage assets and ensure
facilities and infrastructure meet the needs of the community.

Strategic indicators
The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan
including results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.
Strategic Indicator/measure
Statutory Planning
Planning Applications decided within 60 days
Roads
Satisfaction with sealed local roads

Result

Comments

81.52%

60.00

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives
identified in the 2018/19 budget for the year
Major Initiatives

Progress

Investigate options for better weed management including towns
and town entrances and waterways

A study to investigate options for better weed management
including town and town entrances and waterways has been
completed. Included in the study is a list of recommendations for
consideration.

Develop a Parking Strategy for Beechworth and Yackandandah

Development of the Parking Strategy is currently in planning stage.
Multi-year project.

Review current Asset Management Plans

Bridge condition inspections and higher level engineering
assessments completed and Asset Management Plan and Building
Asset Management Plan under review - expected draft completed
for September 2019.

Review and implement key projects from the Lake Sambell
masterplan including the Chinese Gardens

Council officers worked with Beechworth Rotary Club to select and
install pontoon at Lake Sambell.

Finalise the Yackandandah Skate park project

Detailed design complete and tender awarded. Project completion
expected Q2 2019/20.
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Major Initiatives

Progress

Development and implement a shire-wide street plan e.g. planting,
replacement

Revision of street tree themes completed, however Tree
Management Plan has not been updated.

Develop, maintain and implement the Significant Tree Register

Significant Tree Register developed in conjunction with the
Beechworth Trees Consultative Committee, Beechworth Trees
Reference Group.

Support a grant application to upgrade Kergunyah Hall

Officers worked with hall committee to prepare two grant
applications which were unsuccessful. Minor works priorities
identified in conjunction with the hall committee and undertaken
within Indigo Shire Council capital works program.

Progress the Rutherglen Heavy Vehicle deviation planning and
traffic mitigation

Officers are continuing to work with Regional Roads Victoria to
progress the Rutherglen Heavy Vehicle alternate route.

Progress North East Rtegion Tracks and Trails extension and
enhancements specifically Beechworth to Osbornes Flat; Osbornes
Flat to Huon

Multi-year project commenced.

Improve bicycle safety initiatives on roads in Capital Works planning On road cycling safety initiatives have been considered in forward
(e.g. sealed road shoulders)
capital works planning. Funding successful for a number of priority
roads with improvements for cyclists a key driver for those projects.

Expand our sealed road network in urban and rural areas

All urban sealed roads allocated for action in 2018/19 financial year
were completed.

Expand our footpath and cycle path network

All scheduled footpath and cycle path works were completed in
2018/19 financial year.

Services
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the
2018/19 budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Service
Asset Depreciation

Description
This is a centralised cost centre that collates the organisation’s depreciation
expense.

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000
(5,197)
(5,286)
89

Asset Management
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The purpose of this service is to:
• Provide asset management services for Council-owned infrastructure.
• Review and manage Council’s Road Management Plan.
• Provide GIS and associated services, including mapping and road and street
numbering.

(248)
(246)
(2)
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Service
Building Control Services

Buildings and Property

Buller Gas

Capital Works Management

Development Engineering

Drainage

Description
The purpose of this service is to fulfil the obligations required by Local Councils
within the Building Act (1993) and the Building Regulations 2006:
• By issuing building permits which promote safe and sustainable
development.
• Monitoring Places of Public Entertainment.
• Inspecting, monitoring and controlling unsafe structures after accidents or
acts of nature.

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000
(55)
(94)
39

The purpose of this service is to:
• Provide maintenance services to Council-owned and Council-managed
buildings.
• Manage Council’s property portfolio including leases, sales and the
management of arrangements with caravan park operators at Beechworth,
Chiltern, Rutherglen and Yackandandah.

(866)
(880)

The purpose of this service is to manage the Buller Gas contract which
provides a reticulated LP gas service on Mount Buller. Bulk LPG is delivered to
large tanks on site and is distributed throughout the village via a pipe
reticulation system and sold to commercial and residential customers.

613
627

16

(14)

The purpose of this service is to plan and deliver the annual Capital Works
program to ensure projects are completed to expected quality and cost
standards.

(184)
(165)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Provide engineering support to developers and community members
looking to develop or subdivide land;
• Fulfil the role of Engineering referral authority for Indigo Shire Council’s
Planning Scheme – providing conditions and ensuring compliance with
standards for planning permits; and.
• Provide internal engineering and standards support for Infrastructure
Services staff.

(102)
(71)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Investigate stormwater drainage issues.
• Maintain drainage infrastructure.

(19)

(31)

(27)
(34)
7
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Service
Local Laws & animals

Non Indigo Shire Council
owned assets

Description
The purpose of this service is to:
• Provide a safe and orderly environment for residents, visitors and the public.
• To provide amenity and minimise risks to both the community and to
Council, as a business, alike.
• To achieve this through the unit using both State Legislation and Local Laws
to guide the public, these Laws have enforcement provisions that are
applied when other methods fail, the Legislation/Regulations/Local Laws
used include:
• Local Laws 1, 2, 4 and 5;
• Domestic Animal Act 1994 to support animal management;
• Prevention of Cruelty to Animals Act 1986;
• Impounding of Livestock Act 1994;
• Road Safety Act 1986;
• CFA Act 1958;
• Summary Offences Act 1966; and
• Graffiti Prevention Act 2007
This area of the budget represents project work on infrastructure not owned or
managed by Council.

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000
(56)
(64)
8

(782)
(825)
43

Parks & Gardens

Pathways

Planning
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The purpose of this service is to preserve and maintain all Council managed
parks and gardens throughout the Shire. This includes:
• Over 30 different parks and gardens;
• Inspection and maintenance of playgrounds; and
• Cleaning and maintenance of BBQs and park furniture.
The purpose of this service is to manage the maintenance of Council’s
footpaths and shared paths to ensure they are safe and suitable for the
community’s needs.
The purpose of the statutory planning service is to:
• Process all planning applications.
• Act as the Planning Authority and Responsible Authority for the
administration of the Indigo Planning Scheme as required of Council by
State Government.
• Undertake the development and provision of land use policy in keeping
with the Municipal Strategic Statement and Indigo Planning Scheme.

(703)
(740)
37

(43)
(46)
3
(546)
(588)
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Service
Plant, Equipment & Fleet

Quarries

Roads & Bridge Maintenance

Tree Services

Description
The purpose of this service is to ensure that:
• Plant and equipment, suitable for Council’s maintenance and civil
operations; and
• A suitable motor vehicle fleet, necessary for the conduct of Council business,
are maintained in a safe and serviceable condition.
This area of the Budget includes the operating and depreciation costs of all of
Council’s heavy and small plant, fleet and equipment.
The purpose of this service is to produce crushed rock suitable for use in
maintaining Council’s gravel road network. Horseshoe Quarry is owned by
Council and in addition to using the crushed rock on its own roads, some
material is also sold to other users at a market rate.

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000
(1,250)
(1,309)
59

(17)
170
(187)

The purpose of this service is to preserve and maintain Indigo Shire Council’s
roads and associated infrastructure including:
• Sealed and unsealed road pavements.
• Bridges and major culverts.
• Bus shelters.
• Traffic signs and road furniture.
• Lighting.

43
(725)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Preserve and maintain Indigo Shire Council’s many and significant street
and park trees.
• Plan for and implement a replacement planting program.

(405)
(428)

768

23
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Service performance indicators
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and measures including explanation of material variations
Results
Service/indicator/measure

2016

2017

2018

2019

1.00

1.00

1.00

1.00

45.19%

48.24%

35.25%

43.69%

$66.67

$52.91

$62.30

$71.43

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

33.00

29.00

33.00

38.50

79.94%

86.31%

74.92%

81.52%

Material Variations

Animal Management
Timeliness
Time taken to action animal management
requests
[Number of days between receipt and first response action
for all animal management requests / Number of animal
management requests]

Service Standard
Animals reclaimed
[Number of animals reclaimed / Number of animals
collected] x 100

Service Cost

There has been a significant
decrease in feral animals collected
this year, leading to a return to more
normal reclaim rates.

Cost of animal management service
[Direct cost of the animal management service / Number
of registered animals]

Health and safety
Animal management prosecutions
[Number of successful animal management prosecutions]

Statutory Planning
Timeliness
Time taken to decide planning applications
[The median number of days between receipt of a
planning application and a decision on the application]

Service standard
Planning applications decided within the
required timeframes
[(Number of regular planning application decisions
made within 60 days) + (Number of VicSmart planning
application decisions made within 10 days) / Number of
planning application decisions made] x 100
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This year Council received a greater
number of complex applications.
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Results
Service/indicator/measure
Service Cost
Cost of statutory planning service

2017

2018

2019

$1,817.49

$1,871.99

$1,931.38

$2,434.74

40.00%

33.33%

100.00%

33.33%

There were three applications to
review Council decisions lodged
with VCAT. Two Orders set aside
Council’s decision and one varied
Council’s decision. The previous year
only one application to review was
lodged with VCAT.

26.76

27.20

23.69

17.86

Reduction in number of requests
may be due to relatively dry winter
and summer over 2018/19. This
reduction in requests is matched by
an increase in Community
Satisfaction, indicated in the annual
Community Satisfaction Survey.

99.56%

99.66%

99.73%

99.37%

$25.64

$28.73

$30.32

$32.91

$4.36

$4.09

$4.18

$4.47

55.00

53.00

56.00

60.00

[Direct cost of the statutory planning service / Number of
planning applications received]

Decision making
Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT

Material Variations

2016

[Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside
Council’s decision in relation to a planning application /
Number of VCAT decisions in relation to planning
applications] x 100

The increase is attributable to
increased legal costs for
enforcement matters.

Roads
Satisfaction of use
Sealed local road requests
[Number of sealed local road requests / Kilometres of
sealed local roads] x 100

Condition
Sealed local roads maintained to condition
standard
[Number of kilometres of sealed local roads below the
renewal intervention level set by Council / Kilometres of
sealed local roads] x 100

Service cost
Cost of sealed local road reconstruction
[Direct cost of sealed local road reconstruction / Square
metres of sealed local roads reconstructed]

Cost of sealed local road resealing
[Direct cost of sealed local road resealing / Square metres
of sealed local roads resealed]

Satisfaction
Satisfaction with sealed local roads
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how
council has performed on the condition of sealed local
roads]
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Strategic Theme 3: Indigo’s Economy
The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation to the
strategic indicators included in the Council Plan.
Strategic Indicator/measure

Result

Customer Service
Level of satisfaction with the customer service

Tourism
Visitation numbers

68

Comments
Council’s score is slightly behind the state-wide average of
71 and comparison Small Rural Council’s group score of
70.

918,000 visitors in
2018

Beechworth – 401,000
Rutherglen – 230,000
Chiltern – 177,000
Yackandandah – 110,000

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives
identified in the 2018/19 Budget for the year.
Major Initiatives

Progress

Complete the development of the Tourism Strategy and implement Tourism Strategy adopted and implementation underway.
approved projects
Complete the development of the Economic Development
Strategy and implement approved projects

Economic Development Strategy adopted and implementation
underway.

Complete the Kiewa Tangambalanga Placemaking and Structure
Plan project

Kiewa Tangambalanga Placemaking and Structure Plan completed
and implementation underway.
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Services
The following statements provide information in relation to the services funded in the
2018/19 budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Service
Burke Museum &
Historic Precinct

Economic Development

Information Technology

Tourism

Description

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000

The purpose of this service is to:
• Collect, conserve and preserve the unique and nationally significant story of
Beechworth and District.
• Display the collection for interpretation and education, to make it accessible
for researchers and interested tourists alike.
• Promote and support knowledge sharing amongst other museums in the
shire.
• Make accessible for research: academic historians, genealogical researchers.
• Maintain the Historic Precinct and make it accessible to visitors.
• To be a key driver for local tourism.

(409)
(333)

The economic development service assists the organisation to:
• Identify areas/opportunities for growth.
• Strengthen small town retail precincts.
• Assess Council’s impact on economic development.
• Encourage and support agriculture and viticulture activity..
• Inform strategic Council purchasing.
• Deliver place-making initiatives.
• Completion of the Economic Development Strategy.

(165)
(206)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Ensure all of Council’s Information Communications Technology (ICT)
systems and infrastructure is running efficiently and effectively, fit for
purpose in supporting Council staff in their jobs now and moving forward
with high availability and uptime.
• Provide a high level of user support and training to staff and Councillors.
• Support Council’s objectives as described in the Council Plan via strategic
implementation of ICT.

(898)
(910)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Be responsible for the marketing and promotion of Indigo Shire’s tourism
destinations;
• Support the range of tourism festivals and events.
• Support the development of new and existing tourism product.
• Assist industry development through skills workshops and tools.
• Increase the economic benefit to the community through tourism.
• Completion of the Tourism Strategy.

(684)
(728)

(70)

41

12

44
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Service
Visitor Services

38

Description
The purpose of this service is to:
• Operate Visitor Information Centres in Beechworth and Yackandandah, and
support those in Chiltern and Rutherglen.
• Encourage economic growth through maximising visitor spend.
• Deliver information, retail sales and accommodation/tour/and event
bookings to visitors.
• Operate a customer service area open to the public.
• Provide assistance to operators through mentoring and workshops to grow
their businesses and professional skills.
• Collate and provide inspiring informative communications through digital.
print and social mediums.
• Support destination marketing campaigns.

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000
(568)
(581)
13
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Strategic Theme 4: Indigo’s
Environment & Sustainability
We will support the reduction of carbon emissions and adaptation to climate change, reduce community consumption of non-renewable
resources and attract investment for renewable energy industries.

Strategic indicators
The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation to the strategic
indicators included in the Council Plan.
Strategic Indicator/measure

Result

Waste Collection
Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill

62.95%

Comments
Less organics collected and concerns related with the
recycling industry.

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2018/19 Budget for the year.
Major Initiatives

Progress

Launch of a community facility sustainability grant program

Community facility energy upgrade grants program successfully
implemented.

Strategic review of the weed management program

A weed management study containing a number of
recommendations was completed. For further consideration in
2019/20.

Development of a new Waste Management Strategy

A Draft Resource Recovery and Waste Management Strategy was
endorsed by Council for public exhibition in June 2019.

Services
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the
2018/19 budget and the people or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Service
Emergency Management

Environment & Sustainability

Description
The purpose of this service is to:
• Plan for emergency events which may impact on our community.
• Assist in the response and recovery from emergency events.
• Maintain appropriate emergency management capabilities.

The purpose of this service is to initiate and drive a range of environmental
and sustainability programs to promote improved natural resource
management and efficient resource use within Council operations and the
community.

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000
(6)
(46)
40

(216)
(283)
67
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Service
Waste Management

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000

Description
The purpose of this service is to manage the provision of a range of waste and
recycling services including:
• Kerbside waste, recycling and organics collection services to reduce waste
to landfill.
• Operation of Transfer Stations at Beechworth and Rutherglen.
• An annual hard waste service.
• The provision of public place waste/recycle disposal facilities.
• Support for festival and event waste/recycle disposal facilities.

423
384
39

Service Performance Indicators
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance
indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.
Results
Service/indicator/measure

Material Variations

2016

2017

2018

2019

99.33

72.40

72.08

68.02

3.45

4.16

3.09

3.90

$85.23

$87.35

$92.00

$97.45

Increased recycling processing costs
due to industry changes over the
last year.

$54.18

$51.87

$54.75

$71.81

Material increase in the cost of
recyclables processing and disposal
due to global factors affecting the
recycling industry.

Waste Collection
Satisfaction
Kerbside bin Collection requests
[Number of kerbside garbage and recycling bin
collection requests / Number of bin collection
households] x1000

Service standard
Kerbside collection bins missed
[Number of kerbside garbage and recycling collection
bins missed / Number of kerbside garbage and recycling
collection bin lifts] x10,000

Service Cost
Cost of kerbside garbage bin collection service
[Direct cost of the kerbside garbage bin collection service
/ Number of kerbside garbage collection bins]

Cost of kerbside recyclables collection service
[Direct cost of the kerbside recyclables bin collection
service / Number of kerbside recyclables collection bins]

40

31 additional bins missed for the
year. Council is working with the
kerbside collection contractor to
improve performance.
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Results
Service/indicator/measure
Waste diversion
Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill
[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from
kerbside bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside bins] x 100]

2016
65.31%

2017
66.16%

2018
65.98%

2019
62.95%

Material Variations
Less organics collected and
concerns related with the recycling
industry.
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Strategic Theme 5: Indigo’s
Civic Leadership & Governance
Strategic indicators
The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan including results achieved in relation to the strategic
indicators included in the Council Plan.
Strategic Indicator/measure

Result

Overall performance of Council

Comments

61

Level of satisfaction with the overall performance of
Council

Major initiatives
The following statement reviews the progress of council in relation to major initiatives identified in the 2018/19 budget for the year.
Major Initiatives

Progress

Finalise and implement review of Council committees

Committee review final report adopted by Council. Implementation
plan developed and underway.

Redevelop Council’s website

New website launched in August 2018.

Implement the changes arising from the review of the Local
Government Act.

This has lapsed without being passed in State parliament.

Develop a policy and register covering major grant applications.

Register completed. Policy in draft and will be completed in the
coming financial year.

Pursue opportunities for shared services with other Councils in the
region.

Significant work done to explore possible shared services with the
assistance of the State Government’s FAST grant program.
Working with local councils on a shared procurement of IT systems
to secure increased value and function.
$5 million grant application submitted for an 11 Council shared
service across five areas of Council operation.
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Services
The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the
2018/19 budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Service
Communications

Customer Service &
Administration

Executive Management

Financial Services

Description

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000

The purpose of this service is to:
• Provide a range of different communication methods between Council and
the community.
• Provide strategic advice to council staff and Councillors on communication
and media-related issues.
• Community engagement.
• Media liaison.
• Various publications.

(293)
(287)

The purpose of this service is to provide our residents and community with
high quality and efficient customer service delivery from our offices in
Beechworth, Chiltern, Rutherglen and Yackandandah.

(587)
(594)

The purpose of this service is to:
• Oversee and manage the day-to-day operations and affairs of Council.
• Implement the decisions and policies of Council in a timely manner.
• Advise and report to Council on any of the functions of Council prescribed
in the Local Government Act 1989 (LGA).
• Monitor, manage and report on Council’s performance.
• Prepare plans, policies, strategies, budgets and procedures for consideration
by Council in accordance with the LGA and other legislation.
The purpose of this service is to:
• Deliver all core accounting and finance functions.
• Management and compliance of all finance related statutory, legal and
taxation obligations.
• Provide financial support to staff and Council.

(6)

7
(1,637)
(1,531)
(106)

2,818
1,106
1,712

This area of the Budget also receipts rates and charges..
Governance

This service has the responsibility to provide governance support to Council by:
• Provision of good governance to the community including making and
implementing decisions with reference to community engagement, policy
frameworks and agreed practice and in compliance with relevant legislation.
• Key performance indicators, including the State Government’s recently
introduced Local Government Performance Reporting Framework.
• Oversight of Council’s election process including the production and
compliance of voter rolls.
• Support to Council, Councillors, staff and Council committees in matters of
governance.

(63)
(90)
27
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Service
Organisational Development

Rates & Property Services

Records Management

Risk Management

Description
The purpose of this service is to:
• Oversee the full spectrum of employee / volunteer lifecycle events including
attraction, recruitment, retention, training, performance management,
professional development and employee health and wellbeing.
• Drive, influence and support cultural change across the organisation.
• Support and coach line managers and supervisors in supporting, engaging,
developing and motivating their staff.
• Provide for the health, safety and wellbeing of our employees including
continual monitoring and reporting of Council’s incidents, accidents and
near misses including investigations, corrective action, WorkCover
management and supporting employees to return to work safely.
The purpose of this service is to:
• Manage the forthcoming biannual property valuation process;
• Prepare all property rating requirements for the shire including calculations,
rate notices, collections etc.;
• Manage debt collection for outstanding rates Debtors;
• Manage the Vote role updates for election years; and
• Preparation and adoption of Rating strategy.

Net Cost
Actual Budget
Variance
$000
(556)
(529)
(27)

13,361
13,280
81

The purpose of this service is to administer and support Council’s electronic
records management system (TRIM) including regular reviews and strategies
to increase the levels of staff usage and effectiveness and ensure document
disposal and retention requirements are in accordance with the Public Records
Office of Victoria.

(132)
(135)

This service provides a range of governance, risk, insurance, occupational
health and safety, statutory and corporate support services.

(585)
(572)

3

(13)
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Service Performance Indicators
The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance
indicators and measures including explanation of material variations.

Service Performance Indicators
Service/indicator/measure

Results
2016

2017

2018

2019

3.31%

1.92%

2.22%

6.40%

61.00

62.00

59.00

60.00

91.60%

97.14%

95.92%

90.82%

Material Variations

Governance
Transparency
Council resolutions at meetings closed to the
public
[Number of council resolutions made at ordinary or
special meetings of council, or at meetings of a special
committee consisting only of councillors, closed to the
public / Number of council resolutions made at ordinary
or special meetings of council or at meetings of a special
committee consisting only of councillors] x100

Consultation and engagement
Satisfaction with community consultation and
engagement

An increase in contractual and
personnel matters before Council
this year. Conscious decision by
Council to hear appointments to
committees in closed session to
respect privacy and encourage full
Council debate.

[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how
council has performed on community consultation and
engagement]

Attendance
Council attendance at council meetings
[The sum of the number of councillors who
attended each ordinary and special council
meeting / (Number of ordinary and special council
meetings) x (Number of councillors elected at the
last council general election)] x100

Service cost
Cost of governance

$32,095.29 $32,998.29 $32,561.86 $35,755.57

[Direct cost of the governance service / Number of
councillors elected at the last council general election]

Satisfaction

60.00

59.00

59.00

58.00

Satisfaction with council decisions
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how
council has performed in making decisions in the interest
of the community]
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Governance, Management
and other information
Governance
Indigo Shire Council is constituted under the Act to provide
leadership for the good governance of the municipal district and
the local community. Council has a number of roles including:
•

•

•
•

•

Taking into account the diverse needs of
the local community in decisionmaking.
Providing leadership by establishing
strategic objectives and monitoring
achievements.
Ensuring that resources are managed in
a responsible and accountable manner.
Advocating the interests of the local
community to other communities and
governments.
Fostering community cohesion and
encouraging active participation in civic
life.

Council is committed to effective and
sustainable forms of democratic and
corporate governance as the key to
ensuring that Council and its administration
meet the community’s priorities. The
community has many opportunities to
provide input into Council’s decisionmaking processes including community
consultation, public forums such as
Community Forums, and online, as well as
the ability to make submissions on various
issues.
Council’s formal decision-making processes
are conducted through Council meetings
and Special Committees of Council. Council
delegates the majority of its decisionmaking to Council staff. These delegations
are exercised in accordance with adopted
Council policies.
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Meetings of Council
Council conducts open public meetings on
the last Tuesday of each month. Members
of the community are welcome to attend
these meetings and observe from the
gallery. Council meetings are also available
to the community via livestreaming.
Council meetings provide the opportunity
for community members to submit a
question to the Council, make a submission
or speak to an item. For the 2018/19 year
council held the following meetings:
•

11 ordinary Council meetings

•

3 special Council meetings.

The following table provides a summary of
councillor attendance at Council meetings
and Special Council meetings for the
2018/19 financial year.

Council
Meeting

Special
Council
Meeting

Total

Cr Bernard Gaffney

11

3

14

Cr Barbara Murdoch

10

2

12

Cr Larry Goldsworthy

11

2

13

Cr James Trenery

11

3

14

Cr Sophie Price

11

3

14

Cr Jenny O’Connor

8

1

9

Cr Diane Shepheard

10

3

13

Councillors
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Special Committees
The Act allows councils to establish one or
more special committees consisting of:
•

Councillors

•

Council staff

•

Other persons

•

Any combination of the above.

The following table contains a list of special
committees established by the council that
are in operation and the purpose for which
each committee was established.

COUNCIL COMMITTEES
Councillors

Officers

Other

Audit Committee

2

3

4

Oversee and monitor Council in carrying out its
responsibilities for accountable financial
management and good corporate governance

Finance Committee

3

2

0

To provide advice to Council on financial
management matters.

Councillors

Officers

Other

Beechworth Trees Consultative
Committee

1

4

4

To continuously monitor and review the content
and implementation of the Indigo Shire Council Tree
Management Plan.

Burke Museum & Historic Precinct
Advisory Committee

1

3

5

To provide advice to Council on matters relating to
the Burke Museum and Historic Precinct.

Advisory Committees

Overview

Overview

As resolved by Council on 25 September 2018, this
committee is being merged with the Heritage
Advisory Committee, to form a new advisory
committee that will be a key source of history,
heritage and collection advice to Council.
Indigo Shire Community Grants &
Awards Advisory Committee

1

2

12

To provide advice and recommendations to Council
on applications submitted under the Community
Grants Program. To assess nominations received for
the Australia Day awards and Emma George
Scholarship.

Indigo Community Access Committee

2

2

4

To provide advice to Council on matters relating to
disability and community access within in the Indigo
Shire

Indigo Environment Advisory
Committee

2

4

13

To provide advice to Council on the development of
Council policy as it relates to environmental and
sustainability matters.

Indigo Economic Development &
Tourism Advisory Committee

2

4

10

To provide advice to Council on Economic
Development & Tourism related initiatives.
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Advisory Committees
Indigo Heritage Advisory Committee

Councillors

Officers

Other

2

3

8

Overview
To provide advice and guidance to Council on
heritage related matters.
As resolved by Council on 25 September 2018, this
committee is being merged with the Burke Museum
& Historic Precinct Advisory Committee, to form a
new advisory committee that will be a key source of
history, heritage and collection advice to Council.

Wahgunyah Railway Land
Development Committee

2

1

8

Special Committees (s.86)1

Councillors

Officers

Other

1

0

7

Atauro Island Friendship Committee of
Management

To provide advice and assistance to Council in the
development of the Masterplan for the Wahgunyah
Rail Land Reserve.
Overview
Assist in promoting and developing a friendship
relationship between the sub-district of Atauro
Island in Timor Leste and the Indigo Shire Council.
As resolved by Council on 25 September 2018, this
Committee is transitioning to an incorporated
association.

Baarmutha Park Committee of
Management

1

2

8

Manage and coordinate the use of Baarmutha Park.
On 18 December 2018, Council resolved to suspend
this committee’s Instrument of Delegation and take
direct control of the park until the future governance
arrangements are investigated.

Beechworth District Meals on Wheels
Committee of Management

0

1

6

Recruit, train, supervise and coordinate all
volunteers/staff involved in the meals delivery
service.
Council revoked this committee’s Instrument of
Delegation on 25 September 2018.

Beechworth Memorial Hall Committee
of Management

0

0

6

Manage and Coordinate the use of the Beechworth
Memorial Hall.

Chiltern Athenaeum Trust Committee

0

0

30

Manage and coordinate the use of the Chiltern
Athenaeum.
As resolved by Council on 25 September 2018, this
committee is transitioning to an incorporated
association.

Chiltern Courthouse Committee of
Management
1

Has delegated functions, duties powers
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0

0

8

Manage and coordinate the use of the Chiltern
Community Centre.
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Special Committees (s.86)1

Councillors

Officers

Other

Chiltern Goods Shed Committee of
Management

2

1

5

Manage and coordinate the use of the Chiltern
Goods Shed.

Chiltern Memorial Hall Committee of
Management

0

0

6

Manage and coordinate the use of the Chiltern
Memorial Hall.

Coulston Park Committee of
Management

0

0

9

Manage and coordinate the use of the Coulston Park
facility.

Rutherglen Gold Battery Committee

0

0

7

Manage and coordinate the use of the Gold Battery.

Rutherglen Wine Centre Board Special
Committee

2

1

7

The Board governs and directs the operation of the
Rutherglen Wine Centre for and on behalf of Council,
Winemakers of Rutherglen Inc. and Rutherglen and
Region Tourism.

Rutherglen Wine Bottle Committee of
Management

0

0

7

Manage the Rutherglen Wine Bottle (water tower).

Stanley Soldiers Memorial Hall
& Athenaeum Committee

0

0

8

Manage and coordinate the use of the Stanley
Soldiers Memorial Hall and Athenaeum facilities.

Wooragee Community Centre
Committee of Management

0

0

13

Manage and coordinate the use of the Wooragee
Community Centre facilities.

Yackandandah Public Hall &
Courthouse Committee of
Management

0

0

9

Manage and coordinate the use of the
Yackandandah Public Hall and Courthouse.

Yackandandah Sports Park Committee
of Management

0

0

11

Manage and coordinate the use of the
Yackandandah Sports Park facilities.

1

Overview

Has delegated functions, duties powers
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Code of Conduct
The Act requires councils to develop and
approve a Councillor Code of Conduct
within 12 months after each general
election. On 21 February 2017, Council
adopted a revised Councillor Code of
Conduct which is designed to:
• Assist councillors to maintain the
highest standards of conduct and
behaviour as well as provide a means to
deal with problems they may encounter.
• Attract the highest level of confidence
from Council’s stakeholders.
• Assist the Mayor and Councillors to
discharge the responsibilities of their
public office appropriately.
In addition to setting out the Councillor
Conduct Principles, the Code also
outlines:
• Other conduct definitions under the
Act, such as those relating to misuse of
position, improper direction, breach of
confidentiality and conflict of interest.
• Roles and relationships.
• Dispute resolution procedures.

of interest is a standard agenda item for all
council and Committee meetings.
While the procedures vary depending on
the particular role and circumstances, in
general they involve disclosing the relevant
interests in a specific way and then stepping
aside from the relevant decision-making
process or from the exercise of the public
duty. A register is maintained to record all
disclosed conflict of interests. During
2018-19, one conflict of interest was
declared at Special Committee meetings,
three conflicts of interest were declared at
Advisory Committee meetings, and three
conflicts of interest were declared at Council
meetings.

Councillor allowances
In accordance with Section 74 of the Act,
Councillors are entitled to receive an
allowance while performing their duty as a
councillor. The Mayor is also entitled to
receive a higher allowance.

Conflict of Interest

As of 1 December, 2018

Councillors are elected by the residents and
ratepayers to act in the best interests of the
community. This is a position of trust that
requires councillors to act in the public
interest. When a council delegates its powers
to a council officer or a committee, the
committee or officer also needs to act in the
public interest.
A conflict of interest occurs when a personal
or private interest might compromise the
ability to act in the public interest. A conflict
of interest exists even if no improper act
results from it.
Council has a comprehensive procedure in
place to accommodate the disclosure of a
conflict of interest. Declaration of a conflict
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The State Government sets the upper and
lower limits for all allowances paid to
councillors and Mayors. Councils are divided
into three categories based on the income
and population of each council. In this
instance Indigo Shire Council is recognised
as a category one council.

Councillors

Mayor

PART A Allowance (As per Government Gazette)

20,636

61,651

PART B Allowance (Equivalent to Superannuation of 9.5%)

1,960

5,857

22,596

67,508

TOTAL

The following table contains a summary of the allowances
paid to each Councillor during the year.
Councillors

Allowance
$

Bernard Gaffney

52,190

Larry Goldsworthy

22,409

Barbara Murdoch

22,409

Jenny O’Connor

35,523

Sophie Price

22,409

Diane Shepheard

22,409

James Trenery

22,409
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Councillor Expenses
In accordance with Section 75 of the Act,
council is required to reimburse a councillor
for expenses incurred whilst performing his
or her duties as a councillor. Council is also
required to adopt and maintain a policy in
relation to the reimbursement of expenses
for councillors. The policy provides
guidance for the payment of
reimbursements of expenses and the
provision of resources, facilities and other
support to the Mayor and Councillors to
enable them to discharge their duties.
Council also publishes in its Annual Report
the details of the expenses, including
reimbursement of expenses for each
councillor and member of a Council
committee paid by the Council.

The details of the expenses including reimbursement of expenses for each Councillor and
member of a Council committee paid by the Council for the 2018/19 year are set out in the
following table.
Councillors

TR
$

Cr Bernard Gaffney

85

Cr Barbara Murdoch
Cr Jenny O’Connor

CM
$

IC
$

CT
$

Total
$

924

1,556

2,905

5,470

3,188

1,398

302

CC
$

2,011

4,586
3,031

5,344
1,470

Cr James Trenery

1,470

Cr Larry Goldsworthy

1,641

32

1,673

Cr Sophie Price

4,538

1,455

600

6,593

Cr Diane Shepheard

1,270

1,723

32

3,025

Legend: TR-Travel; CM-Car Mileage; CC-Child Care; IC-Information and Communication expenses;
CT‑Conferences and Training expenses.
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Management
Council has implemented a number of statutory and better practice items
to strengthen its management framework. Having strong governance and
management frameworks leads to better decision making by council.
The Local Government Act requires council
to undertake an assessment against the
prescribed governance and management
checklist and include this in its report of
operations. Council’s Governance and
Management Checklist results are set
out in the section below. The following
items have been highlighted as important
components of the management
framework.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee’s role is to oversee
and monitor the effectiveness of council in
carrying out its responsibilities for
accountable financial management, good
corporate governance, maintaining an
effective system of internal control and risk
management and fostering an ethical
environment.
The Audit Committee consists of four
skills-based independent members, Ms
Johanna Barker (Chair), Ms Kate Thomson,
Mr Rob Anderson, Ms Kay Thawley, and two
Councillors, Cr Bernard Gaffney and Cr
Sophie Price. The chair is elected from
amongst the independent members.
Independent members are appointed for
up to three-year terms and independent
positions are externally advertised prior to
the end of each term. Existing members
must reapply at the end of their term and
may serve a maximum of three terms.
The Audit Committee meets four times a
year. The Chief Executive Officer, Director
Planning and Corporate Services and
Manager Risk and Finance attend all Audit
Committee meetings. Other management
representatives attend as required. The
internal and external auditors attend
regularly to present their audit plans and
brief the Committee on the findings and
recommendations from their independent
audit reports.
The Audit Committee in 2019 -2020 will be
seeking a new appointment of an
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independent member as Ms Barker has
resigned. We would like to take this
opportunity to thank her for her dedication
and advice during her three terms with the
Committee.

Internal Audit
Council’s internal audit function provides
independent and objective assurance that
the appropriate processes and controls are
in place across council. An internal Audit
Plan is revised annually to ensure the audit
resources remain focused on the
appropriate areas of risk. The review process
considers council’s risk framework,
Organisational Risk Register, the council
plan, the impact of any change on
operations, systems or the business
environment; prior audit coverage and
outcomes and management input. The
internal Audit Plan is reviewed and
approved by the Audit Committee
annually. The responsible Director and
Manager for each area audited are required
to attend the Audit Committee meeting to
respond to questions in relation any audit
issues identified and related risk controls
and ratings.
Internal Audit recommendations are
assigned to the responsible Manager and
tracked in council’s performance
management system. Risk status updates
are reported to the Audit Committee and
Executive Management Team on a
quarterly basis quarterly.
For 2018/19, the internal auditor conducted
the following reviews:
• Contract Management
• Procurement (including credit cards)
• Infrastructure Asset Management &
Delivery
• Volunteer Management
• Payroll

External Audit
Council is externally audited by the
Victorian Auditor-General as part of
meeting the requirements for the Local
Government Performance Reporting
Framework. For the 2018/19 year the
annual external audit of council’s Financial
Statements and Performance Statement
was conducted by the Victorian AuditorGeneral’s representative. The external
auditors attend the Audit Committee
meetings to present the annual audit plan
and Independent Audit Report. The
external audit management letter and
responses are also provided to the Audit
Committee.

Risk Management
In line with recommendations from the
Internal Audit of the Risk Management
Framework, during the year a review and
updating of Council’s Risk Management
Framework was commenced. The review
will update the framework adopted by
Council in 2015 and include bringing it up
to date with current best practice in the
management of business enterprise risks
and the current AS/NZS-ISO 31000:2018
Guidelines and Principles in Risk
Management.
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Governance & Management
Checklist
The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment against the
prescribed governance and management checklist.
Governance and Management Items

Assessment

1 Community engagement policy (policy outlining council’s
commitment to engaging with the community on matters of
public interest)

Community Engagement Policy
Date of adoption: 30 October 2018



2 Community engagement guidelines (guidelines to assist staff to
determine when and how to engage with the community)

Community Engagement Plan
Date of adoption: 30 October 2018



3 Strategic Resource Plan (plan under section 126 of the Act
outlining the financial and non- financial resources required for at
least the next 4 financial years)

Adopted in accordance with section 126 of the
Act
Strategic Resource Plan
Date of adoption: 25 June 2019



4

Annual budget (plan under section 130 of the Act setting out the
services to be provided and initiatives to be undertaken over the
next 12 months and the funding and other resources required)

Adopted in accordance with section 130 of the
Act
Date of adoption: 25 June 2019



5

Asset management plans (plans that set out the asset
maintenance and renewal needs for key infrastructure asset classes
for at least the next 10 years)

Date of operation of current plans:
Bridges
14 June 2011
Buildings 14 June 2011
Drainage 8 May 2012
Pathways 13 September 2011
Roads
13 September 2011



6 Rating strategy (strategy setting out the rating structure of
council to levy rates and charges

Date of adoption: 26 April 2016



7

Risk policy (policy outlining council’s commitment and approach
to minimising the risks to council’s operations)

Date of adoption: 26 May 2015



8

Fraud policy (policy outlining council’s commitment and
approach to minimising the risk of fraud)

Fraud Policy
Date of adoption: 18 June 2013



9 Municipal emergency management plan (plan under section 20
of the Emergency Management Act 1986 for emergency prevention,
response and recovery)

Prepared and maintained in accordance with
section 20 of the Emergency Management Act
1986
Date of endorsement: 25 July 2017
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Governance and Management Items

Assessment

10 Procurement policy (policy under section 186A of the Local
Government Act 1989 outlining the matters, practices and
procedures that will apply to all purchases of goods, services and
works)

Prepared and approved in accordance with
section 186A of the Local Government Act 1989
Procurement Policy
Date of approval: 25 June 2019

11 Business continuity plan (plan setting out the actions that will be
undertaken to ensure that key services continue to operate in the
event of a disaster)

Crisis Management Plan
Date of adoption: 11 April 2014

12 Disaster recovery plan (plan setting out the actions that will be
undertaken to recover and restore business capability in the event
of a disaster)

Crisis Management Plan
Date of adoption: 18 June 2018

13 Risk management framework (framework outlining council’s
approach to managing risks to the Council’s operations)

Risk Management Framework
Date of adoption: 26 May 2015

14 Audit Committee (advisory committee of council under section
139 of the Act whose role is to oversee the integrity of a council’s
financial reporting, processes to manage risks to the council’s
operations and for compliance with applicable legal, ethical, and
regulatory requirements)

Established in accordance with section 139 of
the Act
Date of establishment: 25 November 2003
Date of Charter adoption: 31 October 2017

15 Internal audit (independent accounting professionals engaged by
the council to provide analyses and recommendations aimed at
improving council’s governance, risk and management controls)

Internal Auditors appointed: 23 February 2017

16 Performance reporting framework (a set of indicators measuring
financial and non-financial performance, including the
performance indicators referred to in section 131 of the Act)

Performance Reporting Framework
Date of operation: 24 August 2015

17 Council Plan reporting (report reviewing the performance of the
council against the Council Plan, including the results in relation to
the strategic indicators, for the first six months of the financial year)

Report date: 26 February 2019

18 Financial reporting (quarterly statements to Council under
section 138 of the Act comparing budgeted revenue and
expenditure with actual revenue and expenditure)

Statements presented to council in accordance
with section 138(1) of the Act
Reporting dates:
25 September 2018
30 October 2018
26 February 2019
30 April 2019

19 Risk reporting (six-monthly reports of strategic risks to council’s
operations, their likelihood and consequences of occurring and risk
minimisation strategies)

Reporting dates:
Date of reports:
30 July 2018
25 February 2019
29 April 2019
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Governance and Management Items

Assessment

20 Performance reporting (six-monthly reports of indicators
measuring the results against financial and non-financial
performance, including performance indicators referred to in
section 131 of the Act)

Date of reports:
30 October 2018
30 April 2019

21 Annual report (annual report under sections 131, 132 and 133 of
the Act to the community containing a report of operations and
audited financial and performance statements)

Considered at a meeting of council in
accordance with section 134 of the Act
Date adopted: 30 October 2018

I certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and management arrangements.

Trevor Ierino
Chief Executive Officer

Bernard Gaffney
Mayor

Dated: 26.09.2019

Dated: 26.09.2019
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Statutory information
The following information is provided in accordance with
legislative and other requirements applying to Council.
Documents Available for
Public Inspection
In accordance with regulation 12 of the
Local Government (General) Regulations
2015 the following are prescribed
documents that are available for public
inspection or copies of the documents can
be obtained for the purposes of section
222 of the Act at 2 Kurrajong Way, Mayday
Hills, Beechworth:
A document containing details of
•
overseas or interstate travel (other
than interstate travel by land for less
than three days) undertaken in an
official capacity by councillor or any
member of council staff in the
previous 12 months
Minutes of ordinary and special
•
meetings held in the previous 12
months which are kept under section
93 of the Act, other than those
agendas and minutes relating to a
part of a meeting which was closed to
members of the public under section
89 of the Act and are confidential
information within the meaning of
section 77(2) of the Act
•
The minutes of meetings of special
committees established under section
86 of the Act and held in the previous
12 months, other than those minutes
relating to a part of a meeting which
was closed to members of the public
under section 89 of the Act and are
confidential information within the
meaning of section 77(2) of the Act
•
A register of delegations kept under
sections 87(1) and 98(4) of the Act,
including the date on which the last
review took place under sections 86(6)
and 98(6), respectively, of the Act
•
A document containing details of all
leases involving land which were
entered into by the council as lessor,
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•

•

including the lessee and the terms
and the value of the lease
A register maintained under section
224(1A) of the Act of authorised
officers appointed under that section
A list of donations and grants made by
the council in the previous 12 months,
including the names of persons who,
or bodies which, have received a
donation or grant and the amount of
each donation or grant.

Best value
In accordance with section 208B(f) of the Act,
at least once every year Council must report
to its community on what it has done to
ensure that it has given effect to the Best
Value Principles. Council incorporates Best
Value Principles through regular business
planning and performance monitoring
processes and through a commitment to
continuous improvement and innovation
which is supported by our Sustainable
Excellence Program. To further reflect
council’s commitment to Best Value, council
has commenced the design and planning of
a Service Planning Program which is being
rolled out to the whole organisation. This
program provides additional review and
improvement mechanisms to ensure that
council’s services achieve best practice
standards in regards to service performance.
The following Best Value initiatives were
undertaken during 2018/19:
•
Review and update of Council’s
four-year Council Plan and Strategic
Resource Plan, including consultation
with the Indigo Community on
service and project priorities.
•
The review of Council’s advisory and
special committees was continued
with consultation sessions being held
with all advisory committees.

•

•

•

Commenced a State Government
funded project (under the FAST
program) to review Council’s service
planning and long-term financial
planning
Commenced (as a partner Council) a
State Government funded project
(under the FAST program) to review
Council’s core rates and property
database.
Lead a region-wide assessment of
possible shared service provision, again
with the support of the State
Government’s FAST program.

Contracts
During the year council did not enter into
any contracts valued at $150,000 or more
for services or $200,000 or more for works
or more of a kind specified in section 186(5)
(a) and (c) of the Act. It also did not enter
into any other contracts valued at $150,000
or more for goods or services or
$200,000 or more for works without
engaging in a competitive process.

Disability Action Plan
In accordance with section 38 of the
Disability Act 2006, as council has prepared
a Disability Action Plan it must report on
the implementation of the Disability Action
Plan in its Annual Report.
Council has prepared a Disability Action
Plan in the form of a Building Inclusive
Communities Action Plan and
implemented the following actions:
•
Developed a program to encourage
small business to address accessibility
issues.
•
Implemented the Indigo Shire Access
Policy
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•
•
•

Completed eight town visits to
conduct infrastructure access audits.
Established an Infrastructure Access
Priority Plan.
Identified disability parking needs
across the Shire.

Domestic Animal
Management Plan
In accordance with the Domestic Animals
Act 1994, council is required to prepare a
Domestic Animal Management Plan at four
yearly intervals and evaluate its
implementation in the annual report.
Council adopted the Domestic Animal
Management Plan 2017-2021 on 29
November 2016. The new plan was
developed through consultation with
council’s Animal Management Team and
input from other council departments. The
Plan was reviewed and updated in
October/November 2018.

Food Act Ministerial
Directions
In accordance with section 7E of the Food
Act 1984, council is required to publish a
summary of any Ministerial Directions
received during the financial year in its
annual report. No such Ministerial
Directions were received by council during
the financial year.

Freedom of Information
IIn accordance with section 7(4AA)(a) and
7(4AA)(b) of the Freedom of Information
Act 1982, council is required to publish
certain statements in their annual report or
separately such as on its website,
concerning its functions and information
available. Council has chosen to publish the
statements separately however provides
the following summary of the application
and operation of the Freedom of
Information Act 1982.

Access to documents may be obtained
through written request to the Freedom of
Information Officer, as detailed in section
17 of the Freedom of Information Act 1982
and in summary as follows:
•

It should be in writing.

•

It should identify as clearly as possible
which document is being requested.

•

It should be accompanied by the
appropriate application fee (the fee
may be waived in certain
circumstances).

Requests for documents in the possession
of council should be addressed to the
Freedom of Information Officer. Requests
can also be lodged online or by email.
Access charges may also apply once
documents have been processed and a
decision on access is made (e.g.
photocopying and search and retrieval
charges).
Further information regarding FOI can be
found at www.foi.vic.gov.au and on the
Indigo Shire Council website.

Road Management Act
Ministerial direction
In accordance with section 22 of the Road
Management Act 2004, a council must
publish a copy or summary of any
Ministerial direction in its annual report. No
such Ministerial Directions were received
by council during the financial year.

Infrastructure and
development contributions
In accordance with section 46GM and
46QD of the Planning and Environment Act
1987, a council that is a collecting or
development agency must prepare and
give a report to the Minister for Planning on
infrastructure and development
contributions including levies and works in
kind. The report must be published in a
council’s annual report.
For the 2018/19 year Indigo Shire Council
did not receive any declarable
development contributions.

Protected Disclosure
Procedures
In accordance with section 69 of the
Protected Disclosure Act 2012 a council
must include in their annual report
information about how to access the
procedures established by the council
under Part 9 of that Act. It is also required to
provide certain information about the
number and types of protected disclosures
complaints investigated during the
financial year.
The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 aims to
ensure openness and accountability in
government by encouraging people to
disclose improper conduct within the
public sector and provide protection for
people who make disclosures. Procedures
on how to make a disclosure are publicly
available Council’s website.
During the 2018/19 year no disclosures
were notified to council officers appointed
to receive disclosures, or to IBAC.
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glossary
Act

means the Local Government Act 1989

Annual report

means a report of the council’s operations of the previous financial year and contains a report of
operations, audited financial statements and an audited performance statement

Appropriateness

means indicators or measures that provide users with sufficient information to assess the extent
to which an entity has achieved a pre-determined target, goal or outcome

Budget

means a plan setting out the services and initiatives to be funded for the financial year and how
they will contribute to achieving the strategic objectives specified in the council plan

Council plan

means a plan setting out the medium-term strategic objectives, strategies, strategic indicators
and resources reflecting vision and aspirations of the community for the next four year

Financial performance indicators

means a prescribed set of indicators and measures that assess the effectiveness of financial
management in a council covering operating position, liquidity, obligations, stability and
efficiency

Financial statements

means the financial statements and notes prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Model Financial Report, Australian Accounting Standards and other applicable standards as
they apply to the general purpose financial reports and a statement of capital works and
included in the annual report

Financial year

means the period of 12 months ending on 30 June each year

Governance and management
checklist

means a prescribed checklist of policies, plans and documents that councils must report the
status of in the report of operations, covering engagement, planning, monitoring, reporting
and decision making

Indicator

means what will be measured to assess performance

Initiatives

means actions that are one-off in nature and/or lead to improvements in service

Major initiative

means significant initiatives that will directly contribute to the achievement of the council plan
during the current year and have a major focus in the budget

Measure

means how an indicator will be measured and takes the form of a computation, typically
including a numerator and denominator

Minister

means the Minister for Local Government

Performance statement

means a statement including the results of the prescribed service outcome indicators, financial
performance indicators and sustainable capacity indicators for the financial year and included
in the annual report

Planning and accountability
framework

means the key statutory planning and reporting documents that are required to be prepared
by councils to ensure accountability to local communities in the performance of functions and
exercise of powers under the Act

Regulations

means the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014
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Relevance

means indicators or measures that have a logical and consistent relationship to an entity's
objectives and are linked to the outcomes to be achieved

Report of operations

means a report containing a description of the operations of the council during the financial
year and included in the annual report

Services

means assistance, support, advice and other actions undertaken by a council for the benefit of
the local community

Service outcome indicators

means the prescribed service performance indicators to be included in the performance
statement which measure whether the stated service objective has been achieved

Service performance indicators

means a prescribed set of indicators measuring the effectiveness and efficiency of council
services covering appropriateness, quality, cost and service outcomes

Strategic objectives

means the outcomes a council is seeking to achieve over the next four years and included in
the council plan

Strategic resource plan

means a plan of the financial and non-financial resources for at least the next four years
required to achieve the strategic objectives in the council plan. It is also referred to as a long
term financial plan

Strategies

means high level actions directed at achieving the strategic objectives in the council plan

Sustainable capacity indicators

means a prescribed set of indicators measuring whether councils have the capacity to meet the
agreed service and infrastructure needs of the local community and absorb foreseeable
changes and unexpected shocks into the future covering financial performance, capacity and
governance and management
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Allans Flat
Barnawartha
Barnawartha North
Beechworth
Brimin
Browns Plains
Bruarong
Carlyle
Charleroi
Chiltern
Chiltern Valley
Cornishtown
Gundowring
Huon
Indigo Valley

Townships and Areas

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Kergunyah
Kiewa -Tangambalanga
Lilliput
Norong
Osbornes Flat
Rutherglen
Sandy Creek
Silver Creek
Staghorn Flat
Stanley
Upper Sandy Creek
Wahgunyah
Wooragee
Yackandandah

Indigo Shire is located in Victoria’s picturesque North East and borders the Murray River and the Australian Alps. Indigo is renowned for its natural beauty and historic towns. Thousands
of tourists visit the area each year to sample our food and wine and visit our many well-known festivals and events.

Description of municipality

For the year ended 30 June 2019

PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
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Performance Statements

Asset management
Ageing well
Capital works delivery
Buildings & property management
Development engineering
Plant and fleet management
Drainage
Tree management
Parks and gardens
Buller Gas
Quarry management
Natural resource management
Emergency management
Foot path and road maintenance (& construction)
Waste Management
Economic Development
Placemaking
Swimming Pools

Indigo Shire shares borders with the municipalities of:
• Wodonga
• Wangaratta
• Towong
• Alpine
• Moira Shire Council

Borders

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Services we provide
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Burke Museum and Historical Precinct
Community Development
Carlyle Cemetery
Customer Service
Environmental and sustainable initiatives
Festivals and events support
Heritage matters
Building Control
Immunisations
Libraries
Local Law enforcement
Maternal and Child Health
Tourism
Public Health
Recreation Services
Land use and Town planning
Youth Services ... and much more.
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270km north east of Melbourne
North East Victoria
2,016 sq km
1,495 km
16,220
13,333 (VEC)
7
1,696
$28.859 million
$16.250 million
131.67 FTE

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by council in its strategic resource plan on 25 June 2019 and which forms part of the council plan. The
strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long term.
Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The strategic resource plan can be obtained by contacting council.

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council’s
strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained in the performance
statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds
unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based
on information drawn from council information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service
performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement
has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Basis of preparation

Location
Region
Area
Length of roads
Est. population
Voters
Number of councillors
Number of businesses
Budget Revenue Total
Budget Rate & Charges Revenue
Employees

Snapshot
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[Index of Relative Socio-economic
Disadvantage by decile]

Disadvantage
Relative socio-economic disadvantage

[Recurrent grants / Municipal
population]

Recurrent grants
Recurrent grants per head of municipal
population

[Own-source revenue / Municipal
population]

Own-source revenue
Own-source revenue per head of
municipal population

[Municipal population / Kilometres of
local roads]

Population density per length of road

[Value of infrastructure / Municipal
population]

Infrastructure per head of municipal
population

[Total expenses / Municipal population]

Population
Expenses per head of municipal
population

Indicator/measure

For
year
ended
302019
June 2019
For
thethe
year
ended
30 June

7.00

$367.86

$1,306.76

10.63

$11,645.10

$1,967.75

2015/16

SUSTAINABLE
CAPACITYINDICATORS
INDICATORS
SUSTAINABLE CAPACITY
Results

7.00

$650.08

$1,304.76

10.42

$12,359.68

$1,781.56

2016/17

8.00

$464.80

$1,335.20

10.85

$12,550.62

$1,807.46

2017/18

8.00

$342.20

$1,343.49

11.03

$12,722.93

$1,811.93

2018/19

2019 recurrent grants decreased because of
transition out of Home Care services from
Council to a private provider

Material Variations
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“unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.

“SEIFA” means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website

“Relative socio-economic disadvantage”, in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial
year, of the area in which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.0001) of SEIFA.

“own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants)

“population” means the resident population estimated by council

“local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004

“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land

“adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:
(a) Non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b) Non-monetary asset contributions; and
(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above.

SUSTAINABLE CAPACITY DEFINITIONS
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[Community satisfaction rating out of
100 with how council has performed in
making decisions in the interest of the
community]

Governance
Satisfaction
Satisfaction with Council decisions

[Number of critical non- compliance
outcome notifications and major noncompliance notifications about a food
premises followed up / Number of
critical non- compliance outcome
notifications and major non-compliance
notifications about food premises] x100

Food safety
Health and safety
Critical and major non-compliance
notifications

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions]

Animal Management
Health and safety
Animal management prosecutions

[Number of visits to aquatic facilities /
Municipal population]

Service/indicator/measure
Aquatic facilities
Utilisation
Utilisation of aquatic facilities

60.00

100.00%

Results

59.00

100.00%

0.00

2.40

2.60

0.00

2016/17

2015/16

For the year ended 30 June 2019

SERVICE PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Service
Performance
Indicators
For
the year ended
30 June 2019

56.00

90.32%

0.00

2.65

2017/18

58.00

104.17%

0.00

2.50

2018/19

One non-compliance was discovered late
in the previous year and was not followedup prior to the end of year. This lead to a
2017/18 result of 90.32%. This
outstanding non-compliance was
completed early in 2018/19 in addition to
the usual 100% follow-up of noncompliance notifications, leading to a
result of 104.17% in 2018/19. Over the
two year period all non-compliances have
been appropriately followed-up by
Council.

New system installed that more
accurately records pool attendance.

Material Variations
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[Community satisfaction rating out of 100
with how council has performed on the
condition of sealed local roads]

Roads
Satisfaction
Satisfaction with sealed local roads

[Number of aboriginal children who
attend the MCH service at least once
(in the year) / Number of Aboriginal
children enrolled in the MCH service]
x100

Participation
Participation in the MCH Service by
Aboriginal children

[Number of children who attend the
MCH service at least once (in the year)
/ Number of children enrolled in the
MCH service] x100

Maternal and Child Health
Participation
Participation in the MCH Service

[Number of active library members/Municipal
population] x100

Libraries
Participation
Active library members

Service/indicator/measure

55.00

72.14%

80.07%

14.17%

2015/16

53.00

65.12%

76.07%

17.11%

56.00

96.15%

87.13%

17.64%

Results
2016/17
2017/18

60.00

91.30%

90.46%

18.99%

2018/19

.

Material Variations
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collected from kerbside bins / Weight of
garbage, recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins] x 100]

[Weight of recyclables and green organics

Waste Collection
Waste diversion
Kerbside collection waste diverted
from landfill

[Number of VCAT decisions that did not
set aside Council’s decision in relation to a
planning application / Number of VCAT
decisions in relation to planning
applications]
x 100

Statutory Planning
Decision making
Council planning decisions upheld at
VCAT

Service/indicator/measure

65.31%

40.00%

2015/16

66.16%

33.33%

Results
2016/17

65.98%

100.00%

2017/18

62.95%

33.33%

2018/19

Less organics collected and concerns related
with the recycling industry.

There were 3 applications to review Council
decisions lodged with VCAT. 2 Orders set
aside Councils decision and 1 varied
Councils decision. The previous year only
one application to review was lodged with
VCAT.

Material Variations
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Means a child who is an Aboriginal person

Has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

Means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library

Means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131,132 and 133 of the Act

means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C

means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C

means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized officer
under the Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

Has the same meaning as in the Food Act program established under the Agreement entered into 1984

means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004

means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to a council by an authorized
officer under the Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is
taken

means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the
municipality from birth until school age

means the resident population estimated by council

means an incident relation to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover Authority under Part 5 of the
Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004.

“Aboriginal child”

“Aboriginal person”

“active library member”

“annual report”

“class 1 food premises”

“class 2 food premises”

“critical non-compliance outcome
notification”

“food premises”

“local road”

“major non-compliance outcome
notification”

“MCH”

“population”

“WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility
safety incident”

SERVICE PERFORMANCE DEFINITIONS
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[Number of permanent staff resignations and
terminations / Average number of permanent staff
for the financial year] x100

Resignations and terminations compared
to average staff

Workforce turnover

[Total expenses / Number of property
assessments]

Expenditure level
Expenses per property assessment

[Residential rate revenue / Number of residential
property assessments]

Revenue level
Average residential rate per residential
property assessment

Efficiency

Dimension/indicator/measure

9.49%

$3,624.30

$1,779.11

2015/16

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Actual

13.04%

$3,222.91

$1,767.46

2016/17

34.93%

$3,352.43

$1,803.91

2017/18

15.88%

$3,319.86

$1,902.80

2018/19

13.64%

$3,343.27

$1,969.17

2019/20

13.64%

$3,299.97

$2,008.50

2020/21

13.64%

$3,406.42

$2,048.67

2021/22

Forecasts

13.64%

$3,503.38

$2,089.67

Material
Variations

2022/23

In 2017/18 Council discontinued the
provision of Home Care and these
services were taken up by a private
health provider.

Material Variations

means an incident relation to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover
Authority under Part 5 of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Financial
Performance Indicators
For the year ended 30 June 2019

“WorkSafe reportable
aquatic facility safety
incident”
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[Unrestricted cash / Current liabilities] x100

Unrestricted cash compared to current
liabilities

Unrestricted cash

[Current assets / Current liabilities] x100

Working capital
Current assets compared to current
liabilities

Liquidity

Dimension/indicator/measure

61.88%

128.94%

2015/16

Actual

134.66%

246.47%

2016/17

92.31%

200.15%

2017/18

71.18%

214.81%

2018/19

66.88%
40.57%

88.08%
125.04%

2019/20

68.58%
49.80%

93.47%
127.50%

72.23%
57.13%

98.20%
131.99%

2021/22

Forecasts
2020/21

Material Variations

72.50% The 2018 result includes
61.62% recurrent grant Department of
Health & Human Services for
aged care services which were
no longer being delivered in
2019.

Working capital in 2019/20 has
133.31%
100.46% decreased because Council has
only included 50% of the
financial assistance grant to be
received for the 2019/20 year,
with no expectation of advanced
payment being received for
future years allocation.

Material
Variations

2022/23
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[Rate revenue / Capital improved value of rateable
properties in the municipality] x100

Rates compared to property values

Rates effort

[Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying revenue] x100

Rates concentration
Rates compared to adjusted underlying
revenue

Stability

Dimension/indicator/measure

0.54%

53.51%

2015/16

0.53%

48.56%

2016/17

Actual

0.54%

51.90%

2017/18

0.47%

56.58%

2018/19

0.47%
0.54%

62.41%
63.42%

2019/20

0.47%
0.54%

57.49%
60.61%

2020/21

0.47%
0.54%

57.70%
59.92%

2021/22

Forecasts

0.54%
0.47%

60.96%
57.82%

Material
Variations

2022/23

2019 property valuations increased
significantly

Material Variations
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[Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit)/ Adjusted
underlying revenue] x100

Adjusted underlying result
Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)

Operating position

Dimension/indicator/measure

-10.18%

2015/16

11.08%

2016/17

Actual

3.04%

2017/18

-3.68%

2018/19

-11.30%

2019/20

0.79%

2020/21

-0.77%

2021/22

Forecasts
Material Variations

Material
Variations Underlying result fluctuates over
the future years because there are
significant non recurrent grant
funding expected to be received
-1.81% for major capital works project in
the coming years.

2022/23
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[Non-current liabilities / Own source revenue] x100

Indebtedness
Non-current liabilities compared to own
source revenue

[Interest and principal repayments on interest
bearing loans and borrowings / Rate revenue] x100

Loans and borrowings repayments
compared to rates

[Interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rate
revenue] x100

Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings compared to rates

[Asset renewal expenses / Asset depreciation] x100

Asset renewal
Asset renewal compared to depreciation

Dimension/indicator/measure
Obligations

38.01%

5.34%

27.63%

74.80%

2015/16

36.26%

4.92%

23.22%

59.68%

2016/17

Actual

31.59%

4.37%

19.08%

61.32%

2017/18

29.47%

4.21%

14.98%

75.74%

2018/19

28.76%
27.81%

4.27%
4.22%

13.85%
15.03%

85.31%
83.80%

2019/20

26.36%
57.47%

4.07%
4.14%

13.03%
11.23%

68.38%
61.32%

2020/21

24.14%
25.19%

3.70%
3.58%

7.88%
9.55%

67.89%
50.67%

2021/22

Forecasts
Material Variations

23.42%

3.12%

6.59%
g
r
e
e
m
e
n
t
.

Continued repayment of loans in
accordance
with loan agreement.
a

Material
Variations 2019 completed capital projects
included large number of renewal
64.96
51.56%
projects. In addition only 71% of
%
capital projects completed in 2019,
resulting in a less depreciation being
charged.

2022/23
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“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges

“population” means the resident population estimated by council

“own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants)

“Non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received again during the period
covered by a Council’s Strategic Resource Plan

“non-current liabilities” means all liabilities other than current liabilities

“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets

“current liabilities” has the same meaning as in the AAS

“Current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS

“asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the service capability of the asset to its original
capability

“Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)” means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure

“adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than—
(a) Non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b) Non-monetary asset contributions; and
(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE DEFINITIONS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Councillors of Indigo Shire Council
Opinion

I have audited the accompanying performance statement of Indigo Shire
Council (the council) which comprises the:
•
•
•
•
•
•

description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2019
sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019
service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019
financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019
other information for the year ended 30 June 2019 (basis of
preparation)
certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement presents fairly, in all material
respects, the performance of the council for the year ended 30 June 2019, in
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989.
Basis for Opinion

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. I further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Performance Statement section
of my report.
My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my opinion.

76

Councillors'
responsibilities for the
performance
statement

The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the performance statement in accordance with the
performance reporting requirements of the Local Government Act 1989, and
for such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation and fair presentation of the statement of performance that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s
responsibilities for the
audit of the
performance
statement

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
on the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance

INDIGO SHIRE COUNCIL
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Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance
statement.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. I also:
•

•

•

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
performance statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether the
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE
26 September 2019

Jonathan Kyvelidis
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria

2
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Councillors of Indigo Shire Council
Opinion

I have audited the financial report of Indigo Shire Council (the council) which comprises the:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

balance sheet as at 30 June 2019
comprehensive income statement for the year then ended
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
statement of cash flows for the year then ended
statement of capital works for the year then ended
notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
certification of the financial statements.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2019 and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.
Basis for
Opinion

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.
My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My
staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Councillors’
responsibilities
for the
financial
report

The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local
Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so.

80

Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit
of the financial
report

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:
•

•

•
•

•

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control
evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors
conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that I identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE
26 September 2019

Jonathan Kyvelidis
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Note
Income
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Contributions - non monetary

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4(a)
3.4(b)
3.5
3.5

Net gain (or loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Other income
Total income
Expenses
Employee costs
Materials and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs
Other expenses
Total expenses

3.6

2019
$
16,304,844
1,061,180
3,528,480
6,125,086
2,774,920
258,244
1,077,798
137,562

2018
$
15,693,689
1,027,899
3,793,285
6,606,097
2,420,149
728,774
1,100,561
16,429

3.7

1,122,036
32,390,150

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6

10,943,924
10,749,617
5,643,144
3,707
134,086
2,404,239
29,878,717
2,511,433

3,196,819

6.2

3,822,799
6,334,232

14,416,204
17,613,023

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Total comprehensive result

1,126,405
32,513,288

11,972,624
9,608,487
5,403,128
3,598
161,798
2,166,834
29,316,469

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Page 4
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Note
Income
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Contributions - non monetary

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4(a)
3.4(b)
3.5
3.5

2019
$

2018
$

16,304,844
1,061,180
3,528,480
6,125,086
2,774,920
258,244
1,077,798

15,693,689
1,027,899
3,793,285
6,606,097
2,420,149
728,774
1,100,561

Net gain (or loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

3.6

137,562

16,429

Other income
Total income

3.7

1,122,036
32,390,150

1,126,405
32,513,288

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6

10,943,924
10,749,617
5,643,144
3,707
134,086
2,404,239
29,878,717

11,972,624
9,608,487
5,403,128
3,598
161,798
2,166,834
29,316,469

2,511,433

3,196,819

3,822,799
6,334,232

14,416,204
17,613,023

Expenses
Employee costs
Materials and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs
Other expenses
Total expenses
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Total comprehensive result

6.2

The above comprehensive
incomeincome
statement
should
conjunction
with
the accompanying
notes.
The above comprehensive
statement
shouldbe
beread
read ininconjunction
with the
accompanying
notes.
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2019
2019

2018

$

$

5.1(a)
5.1(c )
5.1(b)
5.2(a)
6.1
5.2(b)

7,088,310
2,555,330
3,507,080
304,544
1,142,548
14,597,812

8,409,201
2,531,616
2,007,080
299,717
284,000
1,171,047
14,702,661

5.1(c )
6.2

287,376,542
287,376,542
301,974,354

6,025
281,795,288
281,801,313
296,503,974

5.3(a)
5.3(b)
5.5
5.4

3,217,282
174,322
2,822,980
581,108
6,795,692

3,845,398
151,973
2,796,630
551,685
7,345,686

5.5
5.4
5.3(b)

4,605,798
1,861,440
61,221

4,353,674
2,442,548
46,095

6,528,459
13,324,151

6,842,317
14,188,003

288,650,203

282,315,971

163,471,055
125,179,148
288,650,203

160,972,122
121,343,849
282,315,971

Note
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Inventories
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Other assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trust funds and deposits
Provisions
Interest-bearing liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Interest-bearing liabilities
Trust funds and deposits
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets

Equity
Accumulated surplus
Reserves
Total Equity

9.1

The above comprehensive
statement
be read inwith
conjunction
with the
accompanying notes.
The above income
balance sheet
should beshould
read in conjunction
the accompanying
notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Note
2019
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Transfers to other reserves
Transfers from other reserves
Balance at end of the financial year

6.2
9.1
9.1

2018
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Adjustment on change in accounting policy - Land under Roads
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement)
Transfers to other reserves
Transfers from other reserves
Balance at end of the financial year

9.4

9.1
9.1

Total
$

Accumulated
Surplus
$

Revaluation
Reserve
$

Other
Reserves
$

282,315,971
2,511,433
3,822,799
288,650,203

160,972,122
2,511,433
(12,500)
163,471,055

120,857,310
3,822,799
124,680,109

486,539
12,500
499,039

Total
$

Accumulated
Surplus
$

Revaluation
Reserve
$

Other
Reserves
$

207,471,991
57,230,957
3,196,819
14,416,204
282,315,971

99,186,202
57,230,957
3,196,819
(60,143)
1,418,287
160,972,122

106,441,106
14,416,204
120,857,310

1,844,683
60,143
(1,418,287)
486,539

The above comprehensive
income
statement
beread
readin in
conjunction
the accompanying
notes.
The above statement
of changes
in equityshould
should be
conjunction
with thewith
accompanying
notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Interest received
Trust funds and deposits taken
Other receipts
Net GST refund/payment
Employee costs
Materials and services
Trust funds and deposits repaid
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Note

2019
Inflows/
(Outflows)
$

2018
Inflows/
(Outflows)
$

9.2

16,201,441
1,061,180
3,528,480
6,125,086
2,774,920
258,244
304,984
106,272
83,653
(10,879,449)
(12,764,312)
(28,798)
6,771,701

15,592,738
1,027,899
2,940,464
6,606,097
2,420,149
728,774
226,748
110,518
177,644
1,135,269
(12,358,698)
(10,630,221)
(12,852)
7,964,529

(6,210,383)
303,562
(1,500,000)
(7,406,821)

(5,746,548)
83,318
(2,000,000)
(37,656)
(7,700,886)

(134,086)
(551,685)
(685,771)

(161,798)
(523,973)
(685,771)

(1,320,891)
8,409,201

(422,128)
8,831,329

7,088,310

8,409,201

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Payments for investments
Payments of loans and advances
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

6.2

Cash flows from financing activities
Finance costs
Repayment of borrowings
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
5.1(a)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

Financing arrangements
Restrictions on cash assets

5.6
5.1

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Capital Works
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Property

Note

2019
$
49,318
49,318
340,482
190,702
531,184
580,502

336,891
65,453
402,344
764,811
89,622
854,433
1,256,777

775,649
17,329
100,100
95,637
988,715

148,205
62,235
200,472
92,662
503,574

Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Total infrastructure

3,029,815
492,895
834,613
116,397
59,079
387,784
4,920,583

2,191,609
655,533
1,024,525
426,473
34,909
28,774
4,361,823

Total capital works expenditure

6,489,800

6,122,174

Represented by:
New asset expenditure
Asset renewal expenditure
Asset expansion expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure
Total capital works expenditure

811,948
4,274,047
1,403,805
6,489,800

1,191,448
3,313,417
456,805
1,160,504
6,122,174

Land
Land improvements
Total land
Buildings
Heritage buildings
Total buildings
Total property
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and telecommunications
Library books
Total plant and equipment

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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OVERVIEW
Introduction

The Indigo Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 18 November 1994 and is a body
corporate. The Council's main office is located at 2 Kurrajong Way, Mayday Hills, Beechworth, Victoria.

Statement of compliance
These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes
accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with the Australian Accounting
Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government
Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.
Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of accounting
The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities,
equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received
or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgement
derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that
are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that have
significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:
- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2)
- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to Note 6.2)
- the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.5)
- the determination of landfill provisions (refer to Note 5.5)
- other areas requiring judgements
Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate,
comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material
changes to comparatives.
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Note 1 Performance against budget
The performance against budget notes compare Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopted a
materiality threshold of the lower of 10 percent or $100,000 where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for
variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.
The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 26th June 2018. The Budget was based on assumptions that were relevant
at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters for income and expense targets in this budget in order to meet
Council’s planning and financial performance targets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity
resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.
These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 .
1.1 Income and expenditure

Budget
2019
$

Actual
2019
$

Variance Variance
2019
$
%

Income
Rates and charges
Statutory fees and fines
User fees
Grants - operating
Grants - capital
Contributions - monetary
Contributions - non monetary
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Other income
Total income

16,250,093
1,020,746
3,325,945
3,607,172
3,193,991
234,998
165,000
1,061,003
28,858,948

16,304,844
1,061,180
3,528,480
6,125,086
2,774,920
258,244
1,077,798
137,562
1,122,036
32,390,150

54,751
40,434
202,535
2,517,914
(419,071)
23,246
1,077,798
(27,438)
61,033
3,531,202

0%
4%
6%
70%
(13%)
10%
100%
(17%)
6%
12%

Expenses
Employee costs
Materials and services
Depreciation and amortisation
Bad and doubtful debts
Borrowing costs
Other expenses
Total expenses

10,881,656
10,948,482
5,804,669
5,000
134,085
2,072,934
29,846,826

10,943,924
10,749,617
5,643,144
3,707
134,086
2,404,239
29,878,717

(62,268)
198,865
161,525
1,293
(1)
(331,305)
(31,891)

(1%)
2%
3%
26%
(0%)
(16%)
(0%)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

(987,878)

2,511,433

(3,499,311)

354%

Ref

1
2
3
4
5
6

7
8

9

(i) Explanation of material variations
Variance Ref
Item
User fees
1

Explanation
The favourable variance in user fees is due to better than budgeted gas sales. Offset by increase in gas purchases within materials and
services

2

Grants - operating

The increase in operating grants is due to the partial advance payment of financial assistance grants for 2019-20 receipted in 2018-19.

3

Grants - capital

Unfavourable variance because at mid-year Council adjusted the expected completion of works for the Beechworth to Osbornes Flat Rail Trail
project for the 2018/19 year, which originally was budgeted to receive $1.5m in grant funding.

4

Contributions - monetary

This favourable variance is due to operating contributions for library services not originally budgeted.

5

Contributions - non monetary This favourable variance is due to an unbudgeted contributed assets from subdivision works.

6

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of Unfavourable varaince because the actual sale of land determined by the real estate market not as high as predicted in the budget
property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment

7

Materials and services

8

Depreciation and amortisation The favourable variance in depreciation is due to the actual year's capital expenditure being lower than budget.

9

Other expenses

Favourable variance in contract payments because of Council's decision to carry forward major community projects into 2018/19 which were
originaly budgeted for this year. Offset by unfavourable variance in gas purchases because of an increase in gas sales.

Unfavourable varaince because increased expenditure in the areas of legal, contributions, fleet & plant equipment repairs, advertising, audit,
licensing & subscriptions than budgeted
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Note 1

Performance against budget (cont'd)

1.2 Capital works

Budget
2019
$

Actual
2019
$

Variance Variance
2019
2019
$
%

Property
Land
Land improvements
Total land
Buildings
Heritage buildings
Total buildings
Total property

413,020
712,656
1,125,676
1,125,676

49,318
49,318
340,482
190,702
531,184
580,502

49,318
49,318
(72,538)
(521,954)
(594,492)
(545,174)

0%
100%
100%
(18%)
(73%)
(53%)
(48%)

Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Computers and telecommunications
Library books
Total plant and equipment

922,000
60,000
20,000
82,000
1,084,000

775,649
17,329
100,100
95,637
988,715

(146,351)
(42,671)
80,100
13,637
(95,285)

(16%)
(71%)
401%
17%
(9%)

4
5
6
7

Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Total infrastructure

2,350,190
587,200
2,167,680
270,000
510,000
72,000
5,957,070

3,029,815
492,895
834,613
116,397
59,079
387,784
4,920,583

679,625
(94,305)
(1,333,067)
(153,603)
(450,921)
315,784
(1,036,487)

29%
(16%)
(61%)
(57%)
(88%)
439%
(17%)

8
9
10
11
12
13

Total capital works expenditure

8,166,746

6,489,800

(1,676,946)

(21%)

Represented by:
New asset expenditure
Asset renewal expenditure
Asset expansion expenditure
Asset upgrade expenditure
Total capital works expenditure

2,102,080
4,952,213
1,112,453
8,166,746

811,948
4,274,047
1,403,805
6,489,800

(1,290,132)
(678,166)
291,352
(1,676,946)

(61%)
(14%)
0%
26%
(21%)

Ref

1
2
3

(i) Explanation of material variations
Variance Ref
Item
Land improvements
1

Explanation
Council approved mid-year additional projects not budgeted.

2

Buildings

Council approved additional projects at midyear which were not budgeted. In addition other projects remained unfinished
and will be finalised in 2019/20.

3

Heritage buildings

Council approved mid-year to carry forward the Chiltern Athenaeum project into 2019/20 year, which was originally
budgeted. In addition other projects remained unfinished and will be finalised in 2019/20.

4

Plant, machinery & equipment

Purchase of two trucks including cranes was not finished by the end of 2018/19, with the project to be finalised in 2019/20.

5

Fixtures, fittings & furniture

Asset categorisation of actual expenditure has resulted in actual costs being allocated to different asset class than budgeted

6

Computers & telecommunications

Unfinished projects in 2017/18 not budgted for were carried forward and expended in the 2018/19

7

Library books

Additional funding for premiers reading challenge received, so corresponding expenditure incurred to offset funding

8

Roads

Council approved mid-year additional projects not budgeted.

9

Bridges

Council approved unfinished projects from 2017/18 to be carry forward into the 2018/19 year, which were not originally
budgeted. Along with Council approved mid-year additional projects. In addition a couple of projects remained unfinished
and will be finalised in 2019/20.

10

Footpaths & cycleways

Council approved mid-year to realign the progress of the Beechworth to Osbornes Flat Rail Trail project for the 2018/19 year
comapred to the originally budgeted allocation.

11

Drainage

Asset categorisation of actual expenditure has resulted in actual costs being allocated to different asset class than budgeted

12

Recreational, leisure and community facilities

Asset categorisation of actual expenditure has resulted in actual costs being allocated to different asset class than budgeted

13

Parks, open space and streetscapes

Asset categorisation of actual expenditure has resulted in actual costs being allocated to different asset class than budgeted
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Note 2.1 Analysis of Council results by program
Council delivers its functions and activities through the following programs.
2.1 (a)

Office of the CEO
Oversee and manage the day-to-day operations and affairs of the Council;
• Provide quality general management, governance and financial leadership to Council and the Community;
• Timely implementation of decisions and policies of the Council;
• Advise and report to Council on any of the functions of Council prescribed in the Local Government Act;
• Monitor, manage and report to Council on Council’s performance;
• Prepare plans, policies, strategies, budgets and procedures for consideration by Council in accordance with the LGA
and other legislation;
• Provide information and gain input from the community regarding the Council and its policies, programs, goals, and
achievements;
• Supports the capacity of the organisation and Councillors to effectively engage with a range of stakeholders including
community, organisations, other levels of government and the media; and,
• Support, enable and develop the workforce, culture and practices of the organisation to best achieve the objectives of
the Council Plan.
Community and Economic Development Services
Oversee and manage the day-to-day operations and affairs of the Council for the following services;
• Ageing Well;
• Burke Museum & Cultural Heritage;
• Community Development;
• Customer Service & Administration;
• Early Years;
• Economic Development;
• Library Services;
• Records Management;
• Recreation;
• Tourism Development;
• Visitor Services; and,
• Young People.
Infrastructure Services
Oversee and manage the day-to-day operations and affairs of the Council for the following services;
• Asset Management;
• Buildings & Property;
• Buller Gas;
• Capital Works & Management;
• Development Engineering;
• Drainage;
• Emergency Management;
• Environment & Sustainability;
• Parks & Gardens;
• Pathways;
• Plant, Fleet & Equipment;
• Quarries;
• Roads & Bridge Maintenance;
• Tree Services; and,
• Waste Management.
Planning and Corporate Services
Oversee and manage the day-to-day operations and affairs of the Council for the following services;
• Asset Depreciation;
• Buildings Control Services;
• Environmental Health Services;
• Financial Services;
• Information Technology;
• Local Laws & Animals;
• Planning;
• Rates & Property Services; and,
• Risk Management.
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Note 2.1
2.1 (b)

Analysis of Council results by program
Summary of revenues, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

2019
Office of the CEO
Community and Economic Development Services
Infrastructure Services
Planning and Corporate Services

2018
Office of the CEO
Community and Economic Development Services
Infrastructure Services
Planning and Corporate Services

Income

Expenses

$
43,075
1,377,160
12,694,141
18,275,774
32,390,150

$
2,591,259
5,435,257
12,389,429
9,462,772
29,878,717

Income

Expenses

$
29,600
2,566,983
12,542,740
17,373,965
32,513,288

$
2,437,149
6,637,170
11,138,395
9,103,755
29,316,469
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Grants
included in
income
$
$
(2,548,184)
(4,058,097)
822,356
304,712
4,815,494
8,813,002
3,262,156
2,511,433
8,900,006

Surplus/(Deficit)

Surplus/(Deficit)
$
(2,407,549)
(4,070,187)
1,404,345
8,270,210
3,196,819

Grants
included in
income
$
1,476,191
4,546,780
3,003,275
9,026,246

Total assets
$
5,082,041
296,424,485
467,828
301,974,354

Total assets
$
4,623,304
291,444,485
436,185
296,503,974
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services
3.1 Rates and charges
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2019
$

2018
$

Council uses Capital Improved Valuation (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district. The capital improved
value of a property is the value of the land plus any improvements.
The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2018/19 was $3.39 billion (2017/18 $2.90 billion).
General rates
Municipal charge
Waste management charge
Total rates and charges

10,887,627
2,506,813
2,910,404
16,304,844

10,470,212
2,427,138
2,796,339
15,693,689

The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 2019, and the valuation will be
first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2019.
Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are recognised when a
valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.
3.2 Statutory fees and fines
Infringements and costs
Registrations
Carlyle Cemetery*
State Revenue General land revaluation
Land information certificates
Permits
Other fees
Total statutory fees and fines

70,679
310,693
33,960
78,568
27,947
529,591
9,742
1,061,180

70,750
300,713
36,051
27,039
536,440
56,906
1,027,899

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is
received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.
* Council is the Trustee for Carlyle Cemetery.
3.3 User fees
Aged and health services
Leisure centre and recreation
Waste management services
Rental
Buller Gas sales*
Heritage Precinct and Burke Museum
Other fees and charges
Total user fees

114,047
49,953
115,992
2,947,206
229,530
71,752
3,528,480

507,634
114,208
61,013
130,001
2,700,655
230,421
49,353
3,793,285

User fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or council has otherwise earned the income.
* Buller Gas is a service run by Council that provides reticulated gas to buildings on Mt Buller. Refer Note 4.2 for matching costs.
3.4 Funding from other levels of government
Grants were received in respect of the following :
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants
State funded grants
Total grants received
(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Financial Assistance Grants - Local Roads
Financial Assistance Grants - Unallocated
Dept of Health & Human Services - Community Home Support Program Funding
Recurrent - State Government
Dept of Health & Human Services
Dept of Health & Human Services - FreeZa Events
Dept of Health & Human Services - Senior Citizens Week
Immunisation
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning - Library Operations
Municipal Association of Victoria - Tobacco Activity Funding
Vic Roads - School Crossing Supervisors
Vic. Roads - L2P Young People
Other
Total recurrent operating grants
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5,217,522
3,682,484
8,900,006

6,769,651
2,066,906
8,836,557

1,647,174
3,214,287
-

1,618,937
2,983,579
557,071

290,026
24,500
2,200
99,264
4,987
12,082
28,500
10,500
5,333,520

519,132
24,500
2,200
2,891
87,726
4,744
14,953
28,500
10,500
5,854,733
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3.4 Funding from other levels of government (cont'd.)
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Department of Treasury & Finance - Events
Department of Treasury and Finance - Natural Disaster Financial Assistance
Non-recurrent - State Government
Department of Education and Training
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning - Climate Change Grants
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning - Roadside Weed & Landscape Grants
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning - Emergency Management
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning - Other
Department of Health & Human Services - Recreation
Department of Health & Human Services
Department of Premier & Cabinet
Regional Development Victoria - Grants
Victorian Health Grants
Youth Support Services
Other Grants
Total non-recurrent operating grants

2019
$
3,740
24,745

2018
$
189,689

86,476
600
84,670
104,600
96,461
3,000
141,200
51,545
86,715
46,810
61,004
791,566
6,125,086

46,162
3,500
37,205
60,000
207,000
95,608
10,500
37,585
64,115
751,364
6,606,097

309,345

1,610,064

309,345

74,257
1,684,321

18,231

-

130,918
71,001
2,186,800
58,625
2,465,575

24,725
87,500
525,603
98,000
735,828

Total capital grants

2,774,920

2,420,149

(c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner
Balance at start of year
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year
Balance at year end

944,495
1,266,586
(694,765)
1,516,316

Total operating grants
(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to recovery
Recurrent - State Government
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning - Grants
Total recurrent capital grants
Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government
DITC & Regional Development - Goulburn Valley Local Infrastructure
Non-recurrent - State Government
Buildings
Plant, machinery and equipment
Roads
Openspace
Total non-recurrent capital grants

959,688
694,058
(709,251)
944,495

Grant income is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution. Control is normally obtained upon receipt (or acquittal) or upon
earlier notification that a grant has been secured.
3.5 Contributions
258,244
1,077,798
1,336,042

Monetary
Non-monetary
Total contributions
Contributions of non monetary assets were received in relation to the following asset classes.
Land
Roads
Other infrastructure
Total non-monetary contributions

51,117
330,895
695,786
1,077,798

728,774
1,100,561
1,829,335
25,429
549,983
525,149
1,100,561

Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the contributed asset.
3.6 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Plant & Equipment
Proceeds of sale
Written down value of assets disposed
Gain/(loss) from assets sold
Land & Building
Proceeds of sale
Written down value of assets disposed
Gain/(loss) from assets sold
Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
The gain or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.

1,562
1,562

19,318
(2,889)
16,429

302,000
(166,000)
136,000
137,562

64,000
(64,000)
0
16,429
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Interest
Interest on rates
Sale of quarry material
Merchandise sales
Sale of recyclables
Advertising
Building services - private
Commission
Environmental Health - Private
Fire Service Levy
Other
Reimbursements
Fuel rebate
Other
Total other income

2019
$
191,884
113,100
91,135
83,644
50,183
9,129
149,304
2,319
113,248
43,383
47,190

2018
$
129,201
97,547
154,402
93,216
87,516
25,931
137,820
5,689
152,913
42,325
43,026

40,303
187,214
1,122,036

39,601
117,218
1,126,405

Interest is recognised as it is earned.
Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when Council gains control over the
right to receive the income.
Note 4 The cost of delivering services
4.1 (a) Employee costs
Wages and salaries
WorkCover
Annual leave and long service leave
Superannuation
Fringe benefits tax
Other
Total employee costs

8,304,025
366,188
921,378
776,116
16,398
559,819
10,943,924

9,144,661
348,470
962,986
831,754
32,731
652,022
11,972,624

33,729
33,729
1,078

52,687
52,687
1,001

443,387
462,451
905,838
35,437

487,843
452,807
940,650
36,715

3,214,405
162,764
1,121,173
690,916
145,325
303,239
478,580
2,221,676
2,010,707
400,832
10,749,617

2,588,050
198,391
1,147,935
715,324
143,225
278,803
464,411
2,007,408
1,700,703
364,237
9,608,487

(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:
Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer contributions payable at reporting date.
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer contributions - other funds
Employer contributions payable at reporting date.
Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations.
4.2 Materials and services
Contract payments
Building maintenance
General maintenance
Utilities
Office administration
Information technology
Insurance
Waste collection
Gas purchases – Mt Buller*
Other
Total materials and services

* Buller Gas is a service run by Council that provides reticulated gas to buildings on Mt Buller . Refer Note 3.3 for matching income.
4.3 Depreciation and amortisation
Property
1,358,061
Plant and equipment
619,002
Infrastructure
3,666,081
5,643,144
Total depreciation and amortisation
Refer to note 6.2 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and accounting policy.

Page 16

94

1,133,750
647,063
3,622,315
5,403,128

Indigo Shire Council
2018/2019 Financial Report

4.4 Bad and doubtful debts
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Rates debtors
Other debtors
Total bad and doubtful debts

2019
$
2,006
1,701
3,707

2018
$
1,939
1,659
3,598

Movement in provisions for doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year
New provisions recognised during the year
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year
Balance at end of year

4,223
1,265
(390)
5,098

3,016
1,659
(452)
4,223

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This model considers both historic and forward looking
information in determining the level of impairment.
4.5 Borrowing costs
Interest - Borrowings
134,086
161,798
Total borrowing costs
134,086
161,798
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are capitalised as part of a qualifying
asset constructed by Council.
4.6 Other expenses
Contributions from Council
Contributions to community bodies and committees
Contributions to tourism bodies
Regional services/other councils
Contributions to others
Total Contributions
Council
Auditors'
remunerationfrom
- VAGO
- audit of the financial statements, performance statement and grant
acquittals
Auditors' remuneration - Internal
Councillors' allowances
External rental / hire
Plant and fleet repairs
Advertising
Legal costs
Operating lease rentals
Bank charges
Subscriptions and licencing
Vehicle maintenance
Landfill rehabilitation provision *
Quarry restoration provision *
Other
Other expenses
Total other expenses

297,485
234,251
11,173
32,250
575,159
34,400
59,017
199,820
37,779
278,334
181,461
160,723
48,391
54,515
261,788
68,823
199,452
14,548
230,029
1,829,080
2,404,239

235,377
257,077
18,924
48,475
559,853
56,200
41,577
197,465
19,461
311,797
126,785
78,997
78,227
63,570
128,392
92,953
195,708
19,991
195,858
1,606,981
2,166,834

2,014
4,586,296
2,500,000
7,088,310

2,065
4,407,136
4,000,000
8,409,201

7,080
3,500,000
3,507,080
10,595,390

7,080
2,000,000
2,007,080
10,416,281

* Further detail of landfill rehabilitation and quarry restoration refer Note 5.5 b & c.
Note 5 Our financial position
5.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Term deposits
Total cash and cash equivalents
(b) Other financial assets
MAPS shares at cost
Term deposits - current
Total other financial assets
Total financial assets

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary use. These include:
- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3)
235,543
198,068
Total restricted funds
235,543
198,068
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
6,852,767
8,211,133
Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been allocated for specific future purposes by Council:
- cash held to fund carried forward capital works
3,012,598
- Unexpended Grants (Note 3.4c)
1,516,316
- Resort and recreation reserve (Note 9.1b)
499,039
Total funds subject to intended allocations
5,027,953

1,411,701
944,495
486,539
2,842,735

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or
less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost . Any unrealised gains and losses
on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.
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5.1 Financial assets (cont'd.)
(c) Trade and other receivables
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Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors
Provision for doubtful debts - rate debtors
Non statutory receivables
Other debtors *
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors
GST receivable
Heritage and community loans and advances *
Total current trade and other receivables
Non-current
Non statutory receivables
Heritage and community loans and advances *
Total non-current trade and other receivables
Total trade and other receivables

2019
$

2018
$

1,389,079
(24,910)

1,290,119
(22,904)

879,391
(5,098)
310,744
6,124
2,555,330

967,991
(4,223)
294,471
6,162
2,531,616

2,555,330

6,025
6,025
2,537,641

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an
impairment has occurred. Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
(d) Ageing of Receivables *
At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $670,216 (2018: $333,195) were past due but not
impaired. These amounts relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of the
Council's other debtors was:
Current (not yet due)
Past due by up to 30 days
Past due between 31 and 180 days
Past due between 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year
Total trade and other receivables

215,299
458,326
135,571
17,143
59,176
885,515

646,983
212,145
55,586
17,010
48,454
980,178

* Ageing includes Other debtors and current & non-current Heritage and community loand and advances
(e) Ageing of individually impaired Receivables
At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $5,098 (2018: $4,223) were impaired. The amount of
the provision raised against these debtors was $5,098 (2018: $4,223). They individually have been impaired as a result of their doubtful
collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have been lodged with Council's debt collectors or are on payment
arrangements.
The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:
Current (not yet due)
Past due by up to 30 days
Past due between 31 and 180 days
Past due between 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year
Total trade & other receivables

5,098
5,098

4,223
4,223

11,136
108,756
183,449
1,203
304,544

5,056
123,526
170,119
1,016
299,717

5.2 Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories
Inventories held for distribution
Inventories held for sale - Gas
Everton Quarry - Gravel
Carlyle Cemetery
Total inventories

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. All other inventories,
including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where inventories are acquired for no cost or
nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
(b) Other assets
Prepayments
Accrued income
Total other assets
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5.3 Payables
(a) Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Net GST payable
Fire service property levy
Accrued expenses
Total trade and other payables

2019
$

2018
$

2,331,317
33,844
245,835
606,286
3,217,282

2,176,135
32,497
222,894
1,413,872
3,845,398

Fire Service Property Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government.

(b) Trust funds and deposits
Refundable deposits
Carlyle cemetery trust
Other refundable deposits
Total current trust funds and deposits
Non-current
Infrastructure contribution
Total non-current trust funds and deposits
Total trust funds and deposits

39,500
37,806
97,016
174,322

2,000
25,364
124,609
151,973

61,221
61,221
235,543

46,095
46,095
198,068

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are returned, transferred in accordance
with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at
the time of forfeit.
Purpose and nature of items
Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in relation to building works, tender
deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.
Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or a related warrant or defect
period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant
contractor in line with Council's contractual obligations.
Carlyle cemetery trust - Fees received by Council for the purchase of burial and cremation places. Council is the Trustee for Carlyle Cemetery.
Infrastructure contribution - Contributions received by Council for developments. Council is to maintain the contribution until a call for construction works is
made, which may be several years away.
5.4 Interest-bearing liabilities
Current
Borrowings - secured
Non-current
Borrowings - secured
Total

581,108
581,108

551,685
551,685

1,861,440
1,861,440
2,442,548

2,442,548
2,442,548
2,994,233

581,108
1,713,707
147,733
2,442,548

551,685
1,998,435
444,113
2,994,233

Borrowings are secured by a lien on Council rate revenue.
(a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction costs. The measurement basis subsequent
to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value
through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is
recognised in net result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council determines the classification of its interest bearing
liabilities at initial recognition.
5.5 Provisions

Employee

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Balance at the end of the financial year

$
3,108,806
1,833,514
(1,769,040)
3,173,280

Landfill
restoration
$
3,784,146
199,452
3,983,598

2018
Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions
Amounts used
Balance at the end of the financial year

3,164,989
1,971,029
(2,027,212)
3,108,806

3,588,438
195,708
3,784,146

2019
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Other

Total

$
257,352
14,548
271,900

$
7,150,304
2,047,514
(1,769,040)
7,428,778

237,361
19,991
257,352

6,990,788
2,186,728
(2,027,212)
7,150,304
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5.5 Provisions (cont'd.)
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(a) Employee provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave
Long service leave
Accumulated time*
Personal leave pool*
Purchased leave
4/5 Employment model (as per EBA clause 35)*
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave
Long service leave
Total current employee provisions
Non-current
Long service leave
4/5 Employment model (as per EBA clause 35)*
Total non-current employee provisions
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current
Non-current
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions

2019
$

2018
$

673,505
273,086
153,394
81,766
9,105
1,190,856

659,429
274,986
141,348
86,832
10,433
64,847
1,237,875

344,719
1,287,405
1,632,124
2,822,980

262,394
1,296,361
1,558,755
2,796,630

350,300
350,300

296,735
15,441
312,176

2,822,980
350,300
3,173,280

2,796,630
312,176
3,108,806

*Accumulated time - Accumulation of additional hours worked over the employees' standard working hours
*Personal leave pool - Sum of sick leave hours where employees choose to donate portion of their sick leave to be accessed by other staff
*4/5 Employment Model (As per EBA clause 35) - Option for staff to purchase leave over a five year period cumulating in a year's leave after the five year period

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.
Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current
liabilities and measured at their nominal values.
Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as current
liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at
the time of settlement.
Long service leave
Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. Current liability - unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current
liability even when the Council does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer settlement of
the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current liability are measured at :
- present value - component that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months.
- nominal value - component that is expected to be wholly settled within 12 months.
Classification of employee costs
Non-current liability - conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a noncurrent liability. There is an unconditional right to defer settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value.
Key assumptions:
- discount rate
- index rate
(b) Landfill restoration
Non-current

1.32%
4.31%

2.65%
3.88%

$
3,983,598
3,983,598

$
3,784,146
3,784,146

Council is obligated to rehabilitate four former landfill sites to a particular standard. All four sites were closed a number of years ago. The provision for
landfill rehabilitation has been calculated based on the present value of the expected cost of works to be undertaken. The expected cost of works was
reviewed in 2016 and estimated by external company AECOM, based on current understanding of work required to reinstate the sites to a suitable standard
in accordance with EPA standards.
Key assumptions:
- discount rate
- index rate

5.27%
2%

(c) Other provisions
Non-current

5.44%
2%

$

$

271,900
271,900

257,352
257,352

Council operates a quarry for which Council will have to carry out site rehabilitation works in the future. At 30 June 2016 Council obtained advice to
accurately assess the financial implications of such work. On this basis a provision for the remediation was recognised from 30 June 2016. This obligation
has been recalculated as at 30 June 2019.
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5.6 Financing arrangements
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2019
$

2018
$

The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2019:
Bank overdraft
Credit card facilities
Total facilities

1,500,000
64,000
1,564,000

1,500,000
64,000
1,564,000

Used facilities
Unused facilities

52,000
1,512,000

52,000
1,512,000

5.7 Commitments
The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their
nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

2019
Operating
Domestic Recycling
Domestic Garbage Collection
Domestic Organic Waste Collection
Street and Park Bins
Landfill Disposal contract
Green Waste and Timber Mulching
Collection Transport & Recycling Electronic Waste
Cleaning Contracts for Council Buildings
Other
Total

2018
Operating
Domestic Recycling
Domestic Garbage Collection
Domestic Organic Waste Collection
Street and Park Bins
Landfill Disposal contract
Green Waste and Timber Mulching
Collection Transport & Recycling Electronic Waste
Cleaning Contracts for Council Buildings
Other
Total
Capital
Buildings
Footpaths
Plant & Equipment
Roads
Recreation Reserves
Total

Not later than
1 year

Later than 1
year and not
later than 2
years

Later than 2
years and not
later than 5
years

Later than 5
years

Total

$

$

$

$

$

425,124
432,000
886,332
53,148
292,080
18,000
11,520
187,641
201,129
2,506,974

433,626
440,640
904,059
54,211
321,288
191,394
23,342
2,368,560

1,326,897
1,348,358
2,766,419
165,886
1,060,250
386,616
25,920
7,080,346

1,166,275
1,166,275

2,185,647
2,220,998
4,556,810
273,245
2,839,893
18,000
11,520
765,651
250,391
13,122,155

Not later than
1 year

Later than 1
year and not
later than 2
years

Later than 2
years and not
later than 5
years

Later than 5
years

Total

$

$

$

$

$

404,172
411,612
804,595
54,912
300,428
17,500
4,160
183,781
120,730
2,301,890

412,255
419,844
820,687
56,010
330,471
2,427
187,375
23,000
2,252,069

1,261,502
1,284,723
2,511,302
171,391
1,090,554
386,066
18,000
6,723,538

1,286,732
1,310,418
2,561,528
174,819
1,199,609
6,533,106

3,364,661
3,426,597
6,698,112
457,132
2,921,062
17,500
6,587
757,222
161,730
17,810,603

27,975
26,460
47,700
547,871
55,707
705,713

-

-

-

27,975
26,460
47,700
547,871
55,707
705,713

Operating lease commitments
At the reporting date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of equipment and land and buildings for
use within Council's activities (these obligations are not recognised as liabilities):
$
$
28,495
19,595
Not later than one year
69,538
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
98,033
19,595
Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard to be recognised on a straight line basis, rather than expensed in the years in
which they are incurred.
Note 6 Assets we manage
6.1 Non current assets classified as held for sale
Asset at fair value
Total non current assets classified as held for sale

2019
$

2018
$

-

284,000
284,000

Non-current assets classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs of
disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal groups and related liabilities and assets are treated as current and classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset's sale (or disposal group sale) is expected to be completed within 12 months from the date of classification.
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100
154,500
379,703
480,612
2,631,808
2,843,177
6,489,800

Additions
$
176,039
508,102
2,159,036
2,843,177

78,224,224
47,801,800
4,057,245
2,510,400
146,841,969
2,359,650
281,795,288

Opening WIP
$
111,239
261,127
1,987,284
2,359,650

Land
Buildings
Artwork & heritage collections
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Work in progress

Summary of Work in Progress

Land and Buildings
Plant and equipment
Infrastructure
Total

$
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-

Write-off
$

51,117
1,026,681
1,077,798

$

Additions Contributions

(202,185)
(114,936)
(619,555)
(936,676)

Transfers
$

(284,000)
4,106,799
3,822,799

$

Revaluation
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At Fair Value 30
June 2018
$

Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

6.2 Land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment
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85,093
654,293
3,526,765
4,266,151

Closing WIP
$

(549,624)
(808,437)
(619,002)
(3,666,081)
(5,643,144)

$

Depreciation

(166,000)
(166,000)

$

Disposal

-

$

Write-off

145,218
56,966
114,936
619,557
(936,676)
1

$

Transfers

77,575,435
47,430,032
4,057,245
2,486,946
151,560,733
4,266,151
287,376,542

At Fair Value
30 June 2019
$
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At fair value 30 June 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2019

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Impairment losses recognised in operating result
Transfers

Movements in fair value
Additions
Contributions
Revaluation
Disposal
Write-off
Transfers
Impairment losses recognised in operating result

At fair value 1 July 2018
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018

164,092
41,894
205,986
(208,317)
(208,317)
31,468,128
(13,821,159)
17,646,969

154,500
51,117
(284,000)
(166,000)
145,216
(99,167)
(549,624)
2
(549,622)
83,543,603
(5,968,168)
77,575,435

49,318
112,606
161,924
(68,481)
(42,195)
(110,676)

105,182
51,117
(284,000)
(166,000)
32,610
(261,091)
(481,143)
42,197
(438,946)
80,358,596
(4,060,719)
76,297,877

3,185,007
(1,907,449)
1,277,558
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$
31,262,142
(13,612,842)
17,649,300

$
80,619,687
(3,621,773)
76,997,914

Land Land
specialised improvements

Heritage
buildings
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Total Land &
Land
Improvements
$
$
3,023,083
83,642,770
(1,796,773)
(5,418,546)
1,226,310
78,224,224

6.2 Land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
(a) Land and buildings
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45,057,383
(15,274,320)
29,783,063

(600,120)
(600,120)

215,611
15,072
230,683

$
44,826,700
(14,674,200)
30,152,500

Buildings specialised

76,525,511
(29,095,479)
47,430,032

(808,437)
(808,437)

379,703
56,966
436,669

$
76,088,842
(28,287,042)
47,801,800

Total
Buildings

Total
Property

(1,358,061)
2
(1,358,059)

710,242
51,117
(284,000)
(166,000)
(3)
311,356

85,093 160,154,207
(35,063,647)
85,093 125,090,560

-

176,039
(202,185)
(26,146)

$
$
111,239 159,842,851
(33,705,588)
111,239 126,137,263

Work In
Progress
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At fair value 30 June 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2019

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Impairment losses recognised in operating result
Transfers

Movements in fair value
Additions
Contributions
Revaluation
Disposal
Write-off
Transfers
Impairment losses recognised in operating result

At fair value 1 July 2018
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018

5,992,868
(4,237,876)
1,754,992

(455,971)
5,325
7
(450,639)

4,057,245
4,057,245

312,178
(5,325)
43,243
350,096

$
5,642,772
(3,787,237)
1,855,535

-

$
4,057,245
4,057,245
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1,318,557
(1,156,647)
161,910

(20,153)
(20,153)

17,329
17,329

$
1,301,228
(1,136,494)
164,734

Fixtures
fittings and
furniture

1,973,229
(1,718,839)
254,390

(69,434)
(69,434)

55,468
71,687
127,155

$
1,846,074
(1,649,405)
196,669

590,396
(274,742)
315,654

(73,444)
1,562
(1)
(71,883)

95,637
(1,562)
94,075

$
496,321
(202,859)
293,462

Computers
and Library books
telecomms
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Total Artwork &
Plant
heritage machinery and
collections
equipment

6.2 Land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
(b) Plant and Equipment
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9,875,050
(7,388,104)
2,486,946

(619,002)
6,887
6
(612,109)

480,612
(6,887)
114,930
588,655

$
9,286,395
(6,775,995)
2,510,400

Total Plant
and
Equipment
excluding WIP

654,293
654,293

-

508,102
(114,936)
393,166

$
261,127
261,127

Work In
Progress

10,529,343
(7,388,104)
3,141,239

(619,002)
6,887
6
(612,109)

988,714
(6,887)
(6)
981,821

$
9,547,522
(6,775,995)
2,771,527

Total Plant
and
Equipment
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At fair value 30 June 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2019

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Revaluation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Impairment losses recognised in operating result
Transfers

Movements in fair value
Additions
Contributions
Revaluation
Disposal
Write-off
Transfers
Impairment losses recognised in operating result

At fair value 1 July 2018
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2018

68,658
5,706,129
452,518
6,227,305
(266,687)
(2,055,810)
(2,322,497)

2,057,107
436,975
(2,870,427)
167,038
(209,307)
(2,884,392)
3,711,149
826,757
27,558,402
(9,126,625)
18,431,777

$
21,331,097
(6,804,128)
14,526,969

$
160,441,068
(46,587,791)
113,853,277

160,231,761
(45,761,034)
114,470,727

Bridges
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6,518,478
(2,114,002)
4,404,476

(159,605)
(12,030)
(171,635)

327,305
189,049
(327,305)
189,049

$
6,329,429
(1,942,367)
4,387,062

Footpaths and
cycleways

18,650,950
(5,562,354)
13,088,596

(249,195)
66,890
(182,305)

116,397
400,657
(116,129)
1
400,926

$
18,250,024
(5,380,049)
12,869,975

Drainage
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6.2 Land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
(c) Infrastructure
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876,300
(242,440)
633,860

(54,415)
158,214
103,799

34,521
(153,882)
(119,361)

$
995,661
(346,239)
649,422

Recreational,
leisure and
community

921,559
(390,262)
531,297

(51,787)
(51,787)

27,820
27,820

$
893,739
(338,475)
555,264

214,757,450
(63,196,717)
151,560,733

3,526,765
3,526,765

-

2,159,036
(619,555)
1,539,481

2,631,808
1,026,681
2,238,386
619,557
6,516,432
(3,666,081)
1,868,413
(1,797,668)

$
1,987,284
1,987,284

218,284,215
(63,196,717)
155,087,498

(3,666,081)
1,868,413
(1,797,668)

4,790,844
1,026,681
2,238,386
2
8,055,913

$
210,228,302
(61,399,049)
148,829,253

Work In
Total
Progress Infrastructure

$
208,241,018
(61,399,049)
146,841,969

Parks open
Total
spaces and Infrastructure
streetscapes excluding WIP
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6.2 Land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as consideration at the date of
acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a
liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during construction,
and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.
In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless otherwise
stated are consistent with the prior year.
Depreciation Period

Threshold Limit

$

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods
Land & land improvements
land
land improvements
Buildings
buildings
heritage buildings
Plant and Equipment
heritage plant and equipment
plant, machinery and equipment
fixtures, fittings and furniture
computers and telecommunications
library books
Infrastructure
Roads
road pavements - formation and drainage
road pavements - sealed
road pavements - unsealed
road kerb, channel and minor culverts
Bridges
timber and steel construction
reinforced concrete construction
full timber construction
Drainage & culverts
Footpaths and cycleways
Recreational, leisure & community
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Playground equipment
Street & park furniture

5-100 years

1,000
1,000

20-65 years

3,000
3,000

100-226 years
3-20 years
3-20 years
3-10 years
3-9 years
8 years

1,000
1,000
1,000
500

100 years
75 years
15-100 years
25-100 years

5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000

80 years
130 years
80 years
130 years
40 years

5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000

30 years
12 years
25 years

1,000
1,000
1,000

100

Land under roads
Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value.
Depreciation and amortisation
Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are systematically depreciated over
their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining
useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are
reviewed annually.
Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned distinct useful lives
and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.
Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited useful life.
Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
Finance leases
Council has not entered into any finance lease arrangements.
Repairs and maintenance
Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component
of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is
expensed.
Leasehold improvements
At balance date, Indigo Shire Council has no leasehold improvements.
Valuation of land and buildings
Specialised land, specialised buildings
Valuation of land and buildings were undertaken by a qualified independent valuer - Simon Fisher (FAPI, CPV, SRV) of Fisher Property Valuers and
Property Advisors. The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land
planning provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This
adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.
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6.2 Land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd.)
Valuation of land and buildings (cont'd.)
Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced) characteristics, access rights and
private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation.
The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.
Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair value of these assets.
Land under roads is valued at fair value. Fair value is based on council valuations at 30 June 2018 for land under roads brought into existance since
1 July 2008. Land under roads pre 1 July 2008 were brought into account as at 30 June 2018 at fair value for the first time.)
The date of the current valuation detailed in the following table. Details of the Council’s land and buildings and information about the fair value
hierarchy as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:
Level 1
-

Specialised land

Land Improvements
Heritage Buildings
Buildings (specialised)
Total

Level2
-

Level 3
76,297,877
1,277,558
17,646,970
29,783,063
125,005,468

Date of Valuation
30-June-2018
30-June-2016
30-June-2018
30-June-2018

Valuation of infrastructure

Valuation of infrastructure assets was performed by Peter Moloney (Dip CE, CE. EWS. MIEAust) of Moloney Asset Management Systems, Paul
McLachlan, BE/BIT,Post Graduate Cert Asset Management, Indigo Shire's Asset Manager and Nathan Day, Diploma in Natural Resource
Management, Indigo's Asset Systems Officer. The effective date of a full valuation of the various infrastructure components are as follows:
The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation. This cost represents the
replacement cost of the building/component after applying accumulated depreciation rates on a useful life basis. Replacement costs to replace the
property to an "as new" standard. Economic obsolescence has also been factored into the depreciated replacement cost calculation.
Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:
Level 1
-

Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Total

Level2
-

Level 3
114,470,727
18,431,777
4,404,476
13,088,596
633,860
531,296
151,560,732

Date of Valuation
30-Jun-17
30-Jun-19
30-Jun-17
30-Jun-19
30-Jun-19
30-Jun-16

Valuation of Artwork & Heritage Collection

Valuation of Artwork & Heritage collection was performed by Wally Caruana from Caruana Fine Art (specialising in Indigenous Australian art) and
Warren Joel from Byjoel (Auction and valuation services). The effective date of a full valuation is 31st March 2016 for RE Johns Collection and 31st
December 2015 for Burke Museum.
Level 1
Artwork and Heritage Collection
Total

-

Level 2
-

Level 3
4,057,245
4,057,245

Date of Valuation
30-Jun-16

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations
Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the
extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre. The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results
in a reduction to surrounding land values between 5% and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land
and the current market conditions. Currently land values range between $1 and $200 per square metre.
Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the current replacement
cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement costs is calculated on a square metre basis and ranges from $250 to $500 per
square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from 50 years to 226
years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful
lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings.
Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the current replacement cost
and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current condition of
the asset and vary from 15 years to 130 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost
flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten
or extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets.
2019
$
57,436,528
4,177,349
14,684,000
76,297,877

Reconciliation of specialised land
Land under roads
Parks and reserves
Specialised land
Total specialised land
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2018
$
57,385,411
4,478,503
15,134,000
76,997,914
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Note 7 People and relationships
7.1 Council and key management remuneration

Notes to the Financial Report
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(a) Related Parties
Reporting entity
Indigo Shire Council is the reporting entity, with no subsidiaries or associates.
(b) Key Management Personnel
Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any time during the year are:
Councillors

Other members

Councillor Jenny O'Connor (Mayor) (1 July 2018 to 30 October 2018)
Councillor Bernard Gaffney (Mayor) (30 October 2018 to 30 June 2019)
Councillor James Trenery
Councillor Barbara Murdoch (Deputy Mayor) (30 October 2018 to 30 June 2019)
Councillor Diane Shepheard
Councillor Sophie Price
(Deputy Mayor) (1 July 2018 to 30 October 2018)
Councillor Larry Goldsworthy
Chief Executive Officer
Director - Community and Economic Development
Director - Infrastructure Services
Director - Planning and Corporate Services
Manager Engagement and Communications
Manager Organisation Development

Total Number of Councillors
Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel
Total Number of Key Management Personnel
(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short-term benefits
Post employment benefits
Long-term benefits
Total
The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any
related entities, fall within the following bands:
$1 - $9,999
$10,000 - $19,999
$20,000 - $29,999
$30,000 - $39,999
$50,000 - $59,999
$60,000 - $69,999
$80,000 - $89,999
$120,000 - $129,999
$160,000 - $169,999
$170,000 +
* Total banding & remuneration includes related party

2019
No.
7

2018
No.
7

7
14

7
14

2019
$

2018
$

1,131,551
87,022
22,531
1,241,104

1,062,907
81,739
26,445
1,171,091

2019
No.
1
5
1
1
1
1
1
3
1

2018
No.
6
3
1
2
2
1

15*

15*

(d) Senior Officer Remuneration
A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $148,000
All senior officers for Indigo Shire Council are recognised as Key Management Personnel. As such remuneration details are disclosed in part
c of Note 7.1.

106

Page 28

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Indigo Shire Council
2018/2019 Financial Report

2019
$

7.2 Related party disclosure
(a) Transactions with related parties

2018
$

Payment of rates, permits & water usage charges have been excluded from the declaration because these have been recognised as
transactions relating to ordinary citizens.
During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties. Refer footnote on details.
Grants
Sponsorship
Awards
Ground Hire
School Camp
Swimming Carnival
Council functions
Subscription

(i)
(ii)

249
156

4,828
2,900
300
600
365
549
-

Below details relate to 2018/19 transactions only. Prior year details are included in the previous years financials
(i)
(ii)

Reimbursement back to Council for related party attending National General Assembly. Close family member of Mayor Gaffney,
attendance to the National Genneral Assembly was initially paid for by Council.
Reimbursement back to Council for payment of subscription to the Border Morning Mail by Councillor Shepheard

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties.
Ground Hire
Council functions

249

100
-

(c) Loans to/from related parties
The aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed
or secured by the council to a related party as follows:
No loans have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a Responsible Person
during the reporting year (2017/18 nil).
(d) Commitments to/from related parties
The aggregate amount of commitments in existence at balance date that have been made,
guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party are as follows:
No commitments were in existence as at 30 June 2019.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties
8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

(a) Contingent assets
Developer contributions to be received in respect of estates currently under development remain unquantifiable at balance date.
Operating lease receivables
Indigo Shire Council has no operating lease receivables.
Operating lease commitments
At the reporting date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of equipment and land and
buildings for use within Council's activities (these obligations are not recognised as liabilities):
2019
$
28,495
69,538
98,033

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

2018
$
19,595
19,595

(b) Contingent liabilities
Superannuation
Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional contributions to the
scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As a result of the volatility in financial markets there has been two calls
made over the last 9 years that have ranged between $283,528 to $1,278,779. The risk of this contingent liability is monitored quarterly and
current data on the health of this fund indicates that the it is unlikely that a call will be made in the next 12 months.
Future superannuation contributions
The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2020 are $36,759.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if quantifiable, are measured at
nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable, respectively.
(c) Guarantees for loans to other entities
At balance date, Council has $24,000 issued in bank guarantees as a form of deposit for the completion of various contracts undertaken by
Indigo Shire Council.
The amount disclosed for financial guarantee in this note is the nominal amount of the underlying loan that is guaranteed by the Council, not the
fair value of the financial guarantee.
Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised their right to call on the
guarantee or Council has other reasons to believe that it is probable that the right will be exercised.
8.2 Change in accounting standards
The following new AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2019 reporting period. Council has assessed these pending
standards and has identified the following potential impacts will flow from the application of these standards in future reporting periods.
Revenue from contracts with customers (AASB 15) (applies 2019/20 for LG sector)
The standard shifts the focus from the transaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition is determined based on what the customer
expects to be entitled to (rights and obligations), while measurement encompasses estimation by the entity of the amount expected to be entitled
for performing under the contract. The full impact of this standard is not known however it is most likely to impact where contracts extend over
time, where there are rights and obligations that may vary the timing or amount of the consideration, or where there are multiple performance
elements. This has the potential to impact on the recognition of certain grant income.
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 2016-7) (applies 2019/20)
This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities from 1 January 2018 to 1 January 2019.

Leases (AASB 16) (applies 2019/20)
The classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases is eliminated for lessees. Leases will be recognised in the Balance
Sheet by capitalising the present value of the minimum lease payments and showing a ‘right-of-use’ asset, while future lease payments will be
recognised as a financial liability. The nature of the expense recognised in the profit or loss will change. Rather than being shown as rent, or as
leasing costs, it will be recognised as depreciation on the ‘right-of-use’ asset, and an interest charge on the lease liability. The interest charge
will be calculated using the effective interest method, which will result in a gradual reduction of interest expense over the lease term.
Council has elected to adopt the modified retrospective approach to the transition to the new lease standard. This will mean that only existing
operating leases for non low value assets, with remaining terms greater than 12 months, will be recognised on transition (1 July 2019). Based
on our current lease commitments and an assumption of a continuation of the current leasing arrangements Council expects that the transition to
the new standard will see the initial recognition of $140,181 in lease related assets and an equivalent liability.
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058 ) (applies 2019/20)
This standard is expected to apply to certain transactions currently accounted for under AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue
recognition principles for transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable a not-for-profit entity to
further its objectives.

8.3 Financial instruments
(a) Objectives and policies
The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory receivables), payables
(excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior
management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and
appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.
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8.3 Financial instruments (cont'd.)

Notes to the Financial Report
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(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of council financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure
to foreign currency risk.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market interest rates. Our interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and borrowings at fixed rates which exposes
Council to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are
at floating rates.
Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989 . We manage interest rate risk by
adopting an investment policy that ensures:
- diversification of investment product;
- monitoring of return on investment; and
- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.
There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing interest rate risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end result.
(c) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause Council to make a financial
loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the balance sheet. To help manage this risk:
- Council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities Council deal with;
- Council may require collateral where appropriate; and
- Council only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our investment policy.
Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors. Credit risk associated with
the Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge over the rateable property.
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.
Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when Council provide a
guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b).
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any provisions for
impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral.
(d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements, we will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction
when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset.
To help reduce these risks Council:
- have a liquidity principle which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;
- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;
- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;
- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and
- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments to rate revenue.
The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet and
the amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed in Note 8.1(c), and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and current
assessment of risk.
There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk or the methods
used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.
With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade. Details of the maturity profile for
borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4.
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
(e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis
Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and experience of the financial
- A parallel shift of + 1.0% and -1.0% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 1.96%.
These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will they have a material
impact on the results of Council's operations.
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8.4 Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy
Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , Council's financial assets and liabilities
are measured at amortised cost.
Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair
value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.
AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
Revaluation
Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are measured at their fair value,
being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value
to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance
date, the class of asset was revalued.
Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only occur if an
external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of
the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 3
to 4 years. The valuation is performed either by experienced council officers or independent experts.
Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that an
increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment is
recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior
increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the
extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.
Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is
expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is
recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not
exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.
8.5 Events occurring after balance date
No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.
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Note 9 Other matters

9.1 Reserves
(a) Asset revaluation reserves

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019
Balance at
beginning of reporting
period
$

2019
Property
Land and land improvements
Buildings

Increment
(decrement)
$

12,852,724
23,462,679
36,315,403

Plant & equipment
Artwork & heritage collections

(284,000)
(284,000)

750,507
750,507

Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes
Total asset revaluation reserves
2018
Property
Land and land improvements
Buildings
Plant & equipment
Artwork & heritage collections

750,507
750,507

71,483,258
8,301,469
1,668,326
896,806
1,387,758
53,783
83,791,400
120,857,310

840,722
3,650,318
(339,334)
(49,239)
4,332
4,106,799
3,822,799

72,323,980
11,951,787
1,328,992
847,567
1,392,090
53,783
87,898,199
124,680,109

7,524,296
15,580,160
23,104,456

5,328,428
7,882,519
13,210,947

12,852,724
23,462,679
36,315,403

-

69,963,900
8,406,775
1,597,538
1,176,389
1,387,758
53,783
82,586,143
106,441,106

Total asset revaluation reserves

12,568,724
23,462,679
36,031,403

-

750,507
750,507

Infrastructure
Roads
Bridges
Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage
Recreational, leisure and community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes

Balance at end of
reporting period
$

1,519,358
(105,306)
70,788
(279,583)
1,205,257
14,416,204

750,507
750,507
71,483,258
8,301,469
1,668,326
896,806
1,387,758
53,783
83,791,400
120,857,310

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.
Balance at
beginning of reporting
period
$

Transfer from
accumulated
surplus
$

Transfer to
accumulated Balance at end of
surplus reporting period
$
$

(b) Other reserves
2019
Resort and Recreation Reserve (1)
Total Other reserves
2018
Resort and Recreation Reserve (1)
Buller Gas Reserve (2) *
Future Defined Benefit Super Calls (3) *
Car Parking Reserve (4) *
Rural Road Planning Reserve (5) *
Street Trees Development Contributions (6) *
Community Care Transition (7)
Total Other reserves

486,539
486,539

12,500
12,500

426,396
278,131
599,301
16,000
299,464
6,510
218,881
1,844,683

60,143
60,143

(278,131)
(599,301)
(16,000)
(299,464)
(6,510)
(218,881)
(1,418,287)

499,039
499,039
486,539
486,539

(1) Resort & Recreation Reserve: Developer contributions for future open space developments. Section 18, Subdivision Act 1988 requires developers to make
open space contributions to Councils. These funds can only be used by Councils for the development of open space assets.
(2) Buller Gas Reserve: Reserve for future network extension costs.
(3) Future Defined Benefits Reserve: For future calls made from Vision Super relating to Council's Defined benefits scheme.
(4) Car Parking Reserve: Developer contributions for future car park developments.
(5) Rural Road Planning Reserve: Reserve for future road development costs.
(6) Street Trees Development Contributions: Reserve for future Street Tree development costs.
(7) Community Care Transition: Reserve for expected community care services costs.
* Cessation of discretionary reserves because of Council's review of all discretionary reserves identified there is no requirement for these funds to be held into
the future.
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9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Depreciation/amortisation
Profit/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Bad and doubtful debts
Change in provision for doubtful debts
Contributions - Non-monetary assets
Finance Costs
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in trust funds and deposits
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

2019
$
2,511,433
5,643,144
(137,562)
3,707
875
(1,077,798)
134,086

2018
$
3,196,819
5,403,128
16,429
3,598
1,207
(1,100,561)
161,798

(17,689)
(628,116)
(4,827)
278,474
28,499
37,475
6,771,701

(788,684)
1,256,946
(22,060)
159,516
(421,273)
97,666
7,964,529

9.3 Superannuation
Indigo Shire Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local
Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit,
each of which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in the
Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.
Accumulation
The Fund's accumulation categories receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2019, this was
9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation).
Defined Benefit
Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category.
This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan. Council makes employer
contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on the advice of the Fund
Actuary. For the year ended 30 June 2019, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2017/2018).
As at 30 June 2017, a full triennial actuarial investigation was completed. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined
Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer was 103.1%. To determine the VBI, the Fund Actuary used the
following long-term assumptions:
Net investment returns 6.5% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 2.5% pa.
Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2019 quarter was 107.1%.
The VBI is to be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2017 actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from prior years.
Defined benefit 2017 triennial actuarial investigation surplus amounts
The Fund’s triennial investigation as at 30 June 2017 identified the following in the defined benefit category of which Council is
a contributing employer:
A VBI surplus of $69.8 million
A total service liability surplus of $193.5 million.
A discounted accrued benefits surplus of $228.8 million.
The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the
vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2017. Council
was notified of the 30 June 2017 VBI during August 2017.
The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category plus
expected future contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses.
The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category
exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to the investigation date.
An interim actuarial investigation will be conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2019. It is anticipated that this
actuarial investigation will be completed in December 2019.
9.4 Adjustments directly to equity
Adjustments arising from the recognition of land under roads.
Indigo Shire Council recognised pre 1 July 2008 land under roads in the 2017/18 financial year. The initial recognition of land
under roads is recognised as an adjustment to Council's accumulated surplus for 2017/18.
2019
2018
$
$
Land under roads is valued at fair value using Englobo land value of $160,000/ha or

-

57,230,957

-

57,230,957

The effect of Council recognising land under roads in the 2017/18 years is an increase in that year's opening balance of
accumulated surplus of $57,230,957 and an increase in land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment of $57,230,957.
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Contact us
E: info@indigoshire.vic.gov.au
2 Kurrajong Way
PO Box 28
Beechworth, Victoria 3747
1300 365 003

Customer Service Centres
101 Ford Street, Beechworth, Victoria 3747
34 High Street, Yackandandah, Victoria 3749
40 Conness Street, Chiltern, Victoria 3683
153 High Street, Rutherglen, Victoria 3685

